
 
 
 

Mrs J Wallace 
Head of Paid Service 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

Date: 13 January 2020 

 
 

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE  
COMMITTEE 

On: Tuesday 21 January 2020 At: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 
Councillor C Hodson (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: R Craigie, K Hepple, J Hutchings and G Rossi 
 
Non elected Members:  

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence for the meeting. 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 4 - 10) 

 Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on 22 October 2019. 
 

3.   Declaration of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered. 
 

4.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II  

5.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair  



 
 

 

6.   Code of Corporate Governance (Pages 11 - 25) 

 To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.  
 

7.   AGS - Review of Governance Supporting Evidence (Pages 26 - 29) 

 To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer. 
 

8.   Grant Thornton Update Report (Pages 30 - 47) 

 To receive the report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors. 
 

9.   Managing the Risks of Fraud and Corruption. (Pages 48 - 59) 

 To receive the report of the Devon Audit Partnership Manager.  
 

10.   Audit Reports Issued to Date (Pages 60 - 87) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership Manager.  
 

11.   Progress with Agreed Actions (Pages 88 - 91) 

 To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.  
 

12.   Whistleblowing Policy (Pages 92 - 104) 

 To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.  
 

13.   RIPA  

 To receive a verbal update from the Strategic Manager (Resources).  
 

14.   Council Tax and Business Rates (Pages 105 - 108) 

 To receive the report from the Customer Services Manager  
 

15.   Preparation for the 2019/20 Accounts  

 To receive a verbal update from the Strategic Manager (Resources).  
 

16.   Audit Forward Plan 2019-20 (Pages 109 - 110) 

17.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

18.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION) Corporate Assurance Risk Register - January 2020  

 To receive a verbal update from the Strategic Manager (Resources).   
 



 
 

 

 Meeting Organiser: Karen Hewlett - Democratic Services 
 

 



1 
 

 
 

 
TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING 

 
Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 

 
Tuesday, 22 October 2019 - 2.00 pm 

 
PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 

Councillor C Hodson (Vice Chair) 
Councillors M Clarke (substitute for J Hutchings), R Craigie and 
K Hepple 

 
   

 
 

ALSO PRESENT S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 M Bartlett - Engagement Manager 
 A Walling - Engagement Lead 
 R Hutchins - Devon Audit Partnership Manager 
 C Dobbs - Service Improvement Officer 
 K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer 
   
  

 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
 

94.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Hutchings, Councillor Clarke was present 
as his substitute.  
 

95.    MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 17 September 2019 were presented.  
 
There was a discussion regarding the ethical requirements of the Devon County 
Council pension fund - mentioned on page 2 of the minutes.  It was felt that rather 
than ‘making representations’ a letter from Torridge District Council was more 
appropriate. Chair confirmed that this was discussed in the meeting, but it was not 
a put forward as a recommendation.   
 
There was discussion regarding adding this to the agenda of a future meeting, via  
a Notice of Motion, and the deadlines associated with the process.  The Strategic 
Manager (Resources) highlighted a Meeting in November of Devon County Council  
Pension Fund where this feedback could be raised and it was agreed this was 
appropriate given the discussed timescales. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

It was suggested a letter could be sent at a later date if the committee remain 
unhappy with the outcome.  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hodson, seconded by Councillor Hepple and – 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
(Vote: for 4, 1 abstention) 
 

96.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

97.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 
The agenda as circulated was agreed. 
 

98.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 
Chair confirmed that an advert for the vacant non elected Member role on Audit and 
Governance would be published and Jon Walter was currently drawing up the 
advert. 
 
Chair raised that currently only 50% Members have received training on GDPR and 
this needs to be completed by 100% of Members. 
 

99.    INDEPENDENT REPORT - EXTERNAL AUDIT / FINANCIAL REPORTING  
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) explained the background to this report and 
explained there is an open consultation which committee Members could respond 
to if they felt it appropriate.   
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) has responded from a practitioner perspective 
via events where the author of the report has spoken and the feedback from these 
events has been collated.  
 
It was advised there remain some questions which Members may have a view on 
and provide feedback on. Following a discussion it was agreed a separate meeting 
would be arranged.  The Strategic Manager (Resources) confirmed that officers 
would be available to help with any queries that come from the meeting and to 
collate the final response.  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hodson, seconded Councillor Craigie and -  
 
 
 
 

Page 5



3 
 

 
 

Resolved:  
A smaller meeting of interested Members will meet before the consultation deadline 
of 22 November to discuss any potential feedback from a Member perspective. 
Paper copies of the reports to be supplied for the meeting.   
 
(Vote: for Unanimous).  
 

100.    ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER  
 
The Engagement Lead, Alex Walling, presented the Annual Audit Letter and 
explained this is the summary of the work completed in financial year 2018-19.   
 
The key summary was highlighted and explained to Members, along with the work 
completed. It was confirmed that the certificate was granted following the meeting 
on 17th September.   
 
Members duly noted the report.  
 

101.    EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 
The Devon Audit Partnership Manager presented this report to Members and 
explained the self assessment process included. He confirmed that the self 
assessment area is positive overall and highlighted some of the questions that are 
outstanding.   
 

 Question 13 regarding Independent Member recruitment to Audit and 
Governance Committees. This is currently in progress 

 Question 23 regarding how the committee is adding value to organisation. 
This was last completed in 2016. 

 Question 25 regarding publishing of annual report.  An annual report is due 
to be published this autumn.  

 
Members discussed how information from Audit and Governance Committee is 
shared with all Councillors.  Members felt there should be an agreed process for 
reporting back to Full Council regarding the key messages and decisions coming 
from Audit and Governance; there was some discussion regarding how often this 
should take place.   
 
The Service Improvement Officer confirmed the annual report is ready and could be 
added to the agenda of next Full Council if agreed. It was suggested the Audit and 
Governance Chair speak with the Chair of Council to discuss a possible agenda 
item for Full Council on 9th December. 
 
The Devon Audit Partnership Manager reminded Members of the recent training 
survey, which was sent to Committee Members in order to identify their individual 
skills, strengths and any training needs.  Currently there have not been enough 
responses; therefore it was agreed the survey will be re-circulated to all Audit & 
Governance Members and an additional 2 weeks  provided to respond.   
 
Members duly noted the report.   

Page 6



4 
 

 
 

 
102.    ANTI FRAUD, CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY POLICY & STRATEGY  

 
The Service Improvement Officer presented the Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery 
Policy & Strategy to Members and explained it was last updated in 2017.  He talked 
through the key points and detail in the document for Members.  
 
Members discussed the registering of interests and queried how robust the 
Torridge District Council policy is regarding gaining Member interests from new 
Councillors and then updating and reviewing these interests.  
 
The Service Improvement Officer confirmed that Member interests were collected 
when a Councillor was first appointed and the Solicitor for Torridge monitored this 
information in her role as Monitoring Officer.  The Strategic Manager (Resources) 
arranged to confirm the process with the Solicitor for the Council and confirm this 
with Councillor Hodson. 
 
There was a query in relation to fraud and the checks Torridge District Council 
complete regarding investigations  (a data matching exercise was completed 
recently on Council Tax single person discount, resulting in recoveries totaling over 
£23,000) A questions was asked in relation to  benefit fraud – in terms of housing 
benefit - does this include council tax benefit, or are they all merged together in the 
statistics - and is there a breakdown and where are these reports presented and to 
whom.  Questions were raised about the levels of fraud occurring and what kind of 
risks this presents / measures we are taking to mitigate them.  
 
The Service Improvement Officer confirmed there are a  full range of measures in 
place and there has not been any major fraud identified within Torridge for a long 
time.  
 
It was asked if it could be reported back on how many people were removed from 
this discount and was it a useful use of resources to do that work.   
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) confirmed  information on the outcomes of 
these investigations was reported through QBR process. The information could also 
be reported separately to Audit & Governance.  
 
There was further discussion regarding the level of fraud identified and Devon Audit 
Partnership Manager highlighted the ongoing need for Member and Officer 
reminders to raise awareness.  He confirmed that Housing Benefit fraud was now 
managed nationally and not the direct responsibility of Torridge.   
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Hepple and  
 
Resolved:  
To approve the updated Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy & Strategy. 
 
(Vote for:  Unanimous)  
 
 

Page 7



5 
 

 
 

103.    AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE  
 
The Devon Audit Partnership Manager provided a summary of audit reports issued 
to date and how the recommendations are then tracked.  
 
The opinion of the audit on Northam Burrows was ‘good standard’ (no significant 
matters arising).  The opinion of the audit on Housing Options was ‘improvement 
required’ (existing procedures need to be improved).  
 
The Devon Audit Partnership Manager highlighted the main findings of the 
summary report to Members and explained the improvements required.  He 
reassured Members that the team was following up these actions.  
 
Members voiced concern regarding the findings of the report on housing services.  
The Devon Audit Manager explained he was satisfied that the team remained 
focused on helping service users and were following the processes in place.  The 
Strategic Manager (Resources) confirmed that an internal review of the team and 
their processes and procedures is taking place and the homelessness strategy is 
also being updated – this will be presented at Full Council on 9th December.   
 
Councillor Clarke explained that he is the Lead Member for Homelessness and 
Housing Need and has been involved in the work taking place following the findings 
of the Housing Options audit.  Councillor Clarke confirmed a homeless reduction 
act workshop and a the policy is now being written for next 5 years with the 
opportunity for relevant updates in this time. He stated he had no concerns 
regarding the team.  
 
Members duly noted the reports.  
 

104.    PROGRESS WITH AGREED ACTIONS  
 
The Service Improvement Officer presented the Progress with Agreed Actions 
report provided an update on agreed actions.  He explained how the information 
was collated, tracked and summarised.  
 
The Service Improvement Officer confirmed that as at 11th October there had been 
2 internal audit reports issued containing 16 new audit actions.  In the same period 
there were 15 actions completed by management.  There were 6 internal audit 
actions not completed in time as of 11th October, officers were contacted and 
extensions granted for 3.  The Service Improvement Officer ran through the 3 
remaining outstanding actions for Members and provided Members with the history 
of these outstanding actions.  
 
Members queried the action regarding safeguarding.  The Strategic Manager 
(Resources) provided the background to this action and the struggle to gain 
representation of both Board Members at meetings with the Devon-wide 
safeguarding group..   
 

Page 8



6 
 

 
 

Members raised concern at the situation and the impact on information sharing 
protocols.  It was felt there was a need for very strong representation to Devon 
County Council regarding this.   
 
Councillor Hodson requested feedback from the meeting of the District 
representatives of the Board next Wednesday before the next meeting.   
 
Members duly noted the report.  
 

105.    REVIEW OF GOVERNANCE SUPPORTING EVIDENCE  
 
The  Service Improvement Officer presented the evidence  to support the Annual 
Governance Statement. The following table of evidence was explained to Members 
along with the outcomes arrived for each of the areas in sections B3 and F2. 
 
Whilst discussing section B3 a query was raised regarding online reporting was 
available on Torridge District Council’s website.  It was confirmed that reporting is 
available on the website.  
 
The report was duly noted.  
 

106.    GRANT THORNTON UPDATE REPORT  
 
The Engagement Manager provided an update for Members on work carried out up 
till 8 October 2019. He also highlighted the Audit Deliverables for 2018/19 and 
2019/20 and shared the planned dates and action status with Members.  
 
Members queried the proposed deadlines for the 2019/20 audit and asked Grant 
Thornton representatives if these were reasonable and could be met.  The 
Engagement Lead confirmed that there were wider conversations taking place with 
partners within the sector regarding delivery and deadlines, Grant Thornton were 
currently looking at the resourcing of these and would endeavor to meet them.  
Members stated the need for officers and Members to remain will informed of any 
potential delay.   
 
Members duly noted the report. 
 

107.    FORWARD PLAN  
 
It was agreed that the forward plan would be taken as read as it was missing from 
the agenda pack.  A copy of the plan would be provided for Members outside of the 
meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



7 
 

 
 

108.    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Hodson and -  
 
Resolved:  
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 
10of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  
 
(Vote for: Unanimous) 
 

109.    PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  
 

110.    CORPORATE ASSURANCE RISK REGISTER - SEPTEMBER 2019  
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) provided an update on the Corporate Risk 
Register with Members and highlighted the updates since the last meeting.   
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Craigie and  
 
Resolved:  
To come out of Part II and close the meeting.  
 
(Vote for:  Unanimous)  
 

 
 
The meeting commenced at 2.02 pm and closed at 3.46 pm 
 
 
Chair:  Date:  
 
 

Page 10



Agenda Item  

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Code of Governance 

Date: 21st January 2020 Reference:  

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  
It is necessary for the Council to carry out an annual review of its Corporate Governance 
arrangements. A revised Code of Governance is attached for consideration. 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2011) requires the Council to conduct 
a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its Annual Governance Statement.   

 

The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance, and the 
revised Code is at Appendix A. 
 

2. REPORT 
The Code of Corporate Governance is derived from work undertaken by the Independent 
Commission on Good Governance in Public Service – a commission set up by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Office for Public 
Management. The Commission utilised work done by, amongst others, Cadbury (1992), 
Nolan (1995) and CIPFA/SOLACE (2001). The Commission identified six core principles 
which were published in 2004, in a publication entitled ‘The Good Governance Standard for 
Public Services’. A revised Framework was developed by the CIPFA/SOLACE Joint working 
Group on Good Governance in Local Government in 2015 and the group’s conclusions are 
set out in Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English 
Authorities 2016. The framework has seven core principles which emphasise the 
importance of considering the longer term and the links between governance and public 
financial management – all key considerations for local authorities in today’s climate.   
 
The seven core principles are: 

 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of law; 

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement; 
 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits; 
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 

outcomes; 
E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it; 
F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management; and 
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver effective 

accountability 
 

The Council strives to meet the highest standards of corporate governance to help ensure it 
meets its objectives. Members and Senior Officers are responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of the Council’s affairs and stewardship of the 
resources at its disposal.  
 
This Code of Corporate Governance describes what the Council will do to meet each of the 
key principles of good governance 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



3. IMPLICATIONS 
 

Legal Implications 
There is a legal requirement to have an Annual Governance Statement as part of the 
approval of the annual statement of accounts. 
 

Financial Implications 
None 
 

Human Resources Implications 
None 
 

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
N/A 
 

Equality/Diversity 
An Equality Impact Assessment was prepared for the original Code of Governance. 
 

Risk Management 
There is a reputational risk to the Council if it does not comply with its Code of Governance 
and this must be kept up to date. There is an underlying risk that governance arrangements 
are not implemented, monitored and reviewed in accordance with best practise. 
 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
Approval and adoption of the Code of Governance is a key aspect of demonstrating that 
Torridge District Council has a formal and established response to the Corporate 
Governance requirements. 
 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
The Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee said “Each year the Committee scrutinises 
the Council’s governance arrangements. The core principles provided by CIPFA/SOLACE 
help us to focus on the key areas which need to be covered to ensure we carry out our 
business within an open and robust governance framework. “ 
 

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 

 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that the revised Code of Corporate Governance be approved. 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations: Officers Consulted  -  SMT 

Members Consulted – Councillor Philip Hackett  
 
 

 
Contact Officer: 
 

 
Chris Dobbs 

 Background Papers: The CIPFA/SOLACE: Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016. 
Torridge AGS Evidence Database 
The CIPFA/SOLACE: ‘Delivering Good Governance Addendum’, 
produced jointly in 2012 
The CIPFA/SOLACE: ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework’, produced jointly in 2007 

 
 

Page 12



Code of Corporate 

Governance - 2020

Issue Number 14

Approved Audit & Governance Committee

Approval Date January 2020

Next Review Date January 2021

P
age 13



2

C. Defining outcomes in 

terms of sustainable 

economic, social, and 

environmental benefits

D. Determining the 

interventions necessary to 

optimise the achievement of 

the intended outcomes

F. Managing risks and 

performance through robust 

internal control and strong 

public financial management

G. Implementing good 

practices in transparency, 

reporting, and audit, to 

deliver effective 

accountability

A. Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the 

rule of law

B. Ensuring openness 

and comprehensive 

stakeholder engagement

What is Corporate Governance?

In the public sector Good Governance means: "Achieving the Intended Outcomes While Acting in the Public Interest at all Times”. 

Corporate governance generally refers to the processes by which an organisation is directed, controlled, led and held to account. Torridge 

District Council’s governance framework aims to ensure that in conducting its business it:

� operates in a lawful, open, inclusive and honest manner

� makes sure public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and spent wisely

� has effective arrangements in place to manage risk

� meets the needs of Torridge communities - secures continuous improvements in the way it operates.

Our governance framework comprises of the culture, values, systems and processes by with the Council is directed and controlled. It brings 

together an underlying set of legislative and regulatory requirements, good practice principles and management processes, as set out in 

Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016 (CIPFA/SOLACE).

The diagram on the right illustrates how the various 

principles for good governance in the public sector relate 

to each other. 

Principles A and B permeate implementation of principles 

C to G. The diagram also illustrates that good governance 

is dynamic, and that an entity as a whole should be 

committed to improving governance on a continuing basis 

through a process of evaluation and review.

Torridge District Council strives to meet the 

highest standards of corporate governance to 

help ensure it meets its objectives. Members and 

Senior Officers are responsible for putting in 

place proper arrangements for the governance of 

the Council’s affairs and stewardship of the 

resources at its disposal. This Code of 

Corporate Governance describes what the 

Council will do to meet each of the key 

principles of good governance.

Each year the Council undertakes a review of its 

corporate governance arrangements, and at the 

end of each year produces an Annual 

Governance Statement which outlines the 

effectiveness of the Code of Governance and its 

application, suggesting areas for improvement 

and recommendations as appropriate.

E  Developing the entity’s 

capacity, including the 

capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it 

P
age 14



Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend, but also for how they use the resources 

under their stewardship. This includes accountability for outputs, both positive and negative, and for the outcomes they have

achieved. In addition, they have an overarching responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements of 

legislation and government policies. It is essential that, as a whole, they can demonstrate the appropriateness of all their 
actions and have mechanisms in place to encourage and enforce adherence to ethical values and to respect the rule of law. 

We will:

Behave with integrity.

We will do this by:

� Ensuring Members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly and 

consistently demonstrated thereby protecting the reputation of the organisation

� Ensuring Members take the lead in establishing specific operating principles or values for the organisation and its staff and that 

they are communicated and understood. These should build on the Seven Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles)

� Leading by example and using the above standard operating principles or values as a framework for decision making and other 

actions

� Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating principles or values through appropriate policies and 

processes which are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating effectively.

We will:

Respect the rule of law

We will do this by:

� Ensuring Members and staff  demonstrate a strong commitment to 

the rule of the law as well as adhering to relevant laws and 

regulations

� Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other 

key post holders, and Members, are able to fulfil their 

responsibilities in accordance with legislative and regulatory 

requirements

� Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available for the 

benefit of its citizens, communities and other stakeholders

� Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively 

� Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively.

We will:

Demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values

We will do this by:

� Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the 

organisation’s ethical standards and performance

� Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and 

ensuring they permeate all aspects of the organisation’s 

culture and operation

� Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures 

which place emphasis on agreed ethical values

� Ensuring that external providers of service on behalf of the 

organisation are required to act with integrity and in 

compliance with ethical standards expected by the 

organisation.
3

Principle A - Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the rule of law

P
age 15



Local government is run for the public good, organisations therefore should ensure openness in their activities. Clear, trusted 

channels of communication and consultation should be used to engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, such as 

individual citizens and service users, as well as institutional stakeholders.

We will:

Be Open

We will do this by:

� Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and 

communicating the organisation’s commitment to openness 

� Making decisions that are  open about actions, plans, resource use, 

forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The presumption is for openness. If that 

is not the case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision 

confidential should be provided  

� Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records 

and explanations to stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria, 

rationale and considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the impact 

and consequences of those decisions are clear

� Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the 

most appropriate and effective interventions/courses of action.

We will:

Engage with individual citizens and service 

users effectively

We will do this by:

� Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues 

that the organisation will meaningfully consult 

with or involve  communities, individual 

citizens, service users and other stakeholders 

to ensure that service (or other) provision is 

contributing towards the achievement of 

intended outcomes. 

� Ensuring that communication methods are 

effective and that Members and officers are 

clear about their roles with regard to 

community engagement

� Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the 

views and experiences of communities, 

citizens, service users  and organisations  of 

different backgrounds including reference to 

future use

� Implementing effective feedback mechanisms 

in order to demonstrate how views have been 

taken into account

� Balancing  feedback from more active 

stakeholder groups with other stakeholder 

groups to ensure inclusivity

� Taking account of the impact on future 

generations of tax payers and service users. 

We will:

Engage comprehensively with institutional stakeholders

We will do this by:

� Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders  to ensure that the 

purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each stakeholder 

relationship are clear so that outcomes are achieved successfully and 

sustainably

� Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be 

used more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively 

� Ensuring that partnerships are based on: Trust; A Shared Commitment to 

Change; A Culture that Promotes and Accepts Challenge Among Partners; 

and that the added value of partnership working is explicit.
4

Principle B - Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

P
age 16



The long-term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities mean that it should define and plan outcomes 

and that these should be sustainable. Decisions should further the organisation’s purpose, contribute to intended benefits and 

outcomes, and remain within the limits of authority and resources. Input from all groups of stakeholders, including citizens,

service users, and institutional stakeholders, is vital to the success of this process and in balancing competing demands when 

determining priorities for the finite resources available . 

We will:
Define Outcomes

We will do this by:

� Having a clear vision, which is in an agreed formal 

statement of the organisation’s purpose and intended 

outcomes containing appropriate performance indicators, 

which provide the basis for the organisation’s overall 

strategy, planning and other decisions 

� Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, 

stakeholders including individual citizens and service 

users. It could be immediately or over the course of a year 

or longer

� Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within 

the resources that will be available

� Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of 

outcomes 

� Managing service users’ expectations effectively with 

regard to determining priorities and making the best use of  

the resources available.

We will:

Provide sustainable economic, social and environmental 

benefits

We will do this by:

� Considering and balancing the combined economic, social 

and environmental impact of policies and plans when 

taking decisions about service provision

� Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, 

taking account of risk and acting transparently where there 

are potential conflicts  between the organisation’s intended 

outcomes and short-term factors such as the political cycle 

or financial constraints

� Determining  the wider public interest associated with 

balancing conflicting interests between achieving the 

various economic, social and environmental benefits, 

through consultation where possible, in order to ensure 

appropriate trade-offs

� Ensuring fair access to services.

5

Principle C - Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 

environmental benefits

P
age 17



Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal, regulatory, and practical interventions 

(courses of action). Determining the right mix of these courses of action is a critically important strategic choice that the 

Council has to make to ensure intended outcomes are achieved. The Council needs robust decision-making mechanisms to 

ensure that their defined outcomes can be achieved in a way that provides the best trade-off between the various types of 

resource inputs while still enabling effective and efficient operations. Decisions made need to be reviewed frequently to 

ensure that achievement of outcomes is optimised. 

We will:

Determine Interventions

We will do this by:

� Ensuring  decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a 

variety of options indicating how  intended outcomes would be achieved 

and associated risks. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however 

services are provided

� Considering feedback from citizens and service users when making 

decisions about service improvements or where services are no longer 

required in order to prioritise competing demands with limited resources 

available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind 

future impacts.

We will:

Optimise achievement of intended outcomes

We will do this by:

� Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances 

service priorities, affordability and other resource constraints

� Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the 

full cost of operations over the medium and longer term

� Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing 

decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in the 

external environment that may arise during the budgetary period in order 

for outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage

� Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and 

commissioning.

We will:

Plan interventions

We will do this by:

� Establishing  and implementing robust planning and control 

cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, priorities 

and targets 

� Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in 

determining how services and other courses of action should 

be planned and delivered

� Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when 

working collaboratively, including shared risks

� Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 

mechanisms for delivering goods and services can be 

adapted to changing circumstances

� Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) 

as part of the planning process in order to identify how the 

performance of services and projects is to be measured 

� Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information required 

to review service quality regularly

� Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies 

and the medium term financial plan 

� Informing medium and long term resource planning by 

drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital 

expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding 

strategy.

6

Principle D - Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 

the intended outcomes

P
age 18



Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people with the right skills, appropriate qualifications 

and mindset, to operate efficiently and effectively and achieve their intended outcomes within the specified periods. A local 

government organisation must ensure that it has both the capacity to fulfil its own mandate and to make certain that there are 

policies in place to guarantee that its management has the operational capacity for the organisation as a whole. Because both 

individuals and the environment in which an organisation operates will change over time, there will be a continuous need to 

develop its capacity as well as providing training to develop the skills and experience of individual staff members. Leadership in 

local government is strengthened by the participation of people with many different types of backgrounds, reflecting the 

structure and diversity of communities. 

We will:

Develop the entity’s capacity

We will do this by:

� Reviewing operations, performance and use of 

assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing 

effectiveness

� Improving resource use through appropriate 

application of techniques such as benchmarking and 

other options in order to determine how resources 

are allocated so that defined outcomes are achieved 

effectively and efficiently

� Recognising the benefits of partnerships and 

collaborative working where added value can be 

achieved

� Developing and maintaining an effective workforce 

plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources.  

We will:

Develop the capability of the entity’s leadership and other 

individuals 

We will do this by:

� Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders 

negotiate with each other regarding their respective roles early on 

in the relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and 

objectives is maintained

� Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions that 

are delegated and those reserved for the collective decision 

making of the governing body

� Ensuring the Leader and the Head of Paid Service have clearly 

defined and distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby 

the Head of Paid Service leads in implementing strategy and 

managing the delivery of services and other outputs set by 

Members and each provides a check and a balance for each 

other’s authority

Continued….

7

Principle E - Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it

P
age 19



Continued…

We will:

Develop the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals

Continued…

We will do this by:

� Developing the capabilities of Members and Senior Management to achieve effective leadership and to enable the 

organisation to respond successfully to changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and environmental 

changes and risks by:

� Ensuring Members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored to their role and that ongoing training and 

development matching individual and organisational requirements is available and encouraged

� Identifying training needs to ensure Members and Senior Officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge resources 

and support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update their knowledge on a 

continuing basis

� Ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through shared learning, including lessons learned 

from governance weaknesses both internal and external

� Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation

� Taking steps to consider  the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to constructive feedback from 

peer review and inspections

� Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training or development needs

� Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain  the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support individuals in 

maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing. 

8

Principle E - Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it

P
age 20



Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance structures that it oversees have implemented, and 

can sustain, an effective performance management system that facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned services. 

Risk management and internal control are important and integral parts of a performance management system and are crucial 

to the achievement of outcomes. Risk should be considered and addressed as part of all decision making activities.

A strong system of financial management is essential for the implementation of policies and the achievement of intended 

outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline, strategic allocation of resources, efficient service delivery and accountability. 

It is also essential that a culture and structure for scrutiny are in place as a key part of accountable decision making, policy

making and review. A positive working culture that accepts, promotes and encourages constructive challenge is critical to 

successful scrutiny and successful service delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen automatically, it requires 

repeated public commitment from those in authority.

We will:

Manage risk

We will do this by:

� Recognising  that risk management is an integral part of all activities 

and must be considered in all aspects of decision making

� Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements 

and ensuring that they are working effectively

� Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are 

clearly allocated. 

Note: Although we recognise that not all risks can be eliminated, we 

will ensure that we understand the impact of those risks and reduce 

them to an acceptable level over time. 

We will:

Have strong public financial management

We will do this by:

� Ensuring financial management supports both 

long term achievement of outcomes and short-

term financial and operational performance

� Ensuring well-developed financial management 

is integrated at all levels of planning and control, 

including management of financial risks and 

controls. 

9

Principle F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and 

strong public financial management

P
age 21



10

Continued…

We will:

Have robust internal controls

We will do this by:

� Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal 

control with achieving objectives 

� Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal 

control on a regular basis

� Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption 

arrangements are in place

� Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk 

management and control is provided by the internal auditor

� Ensuring an audit committee which is independent of the 

executive and accountable to the governing body:

� Provides a further source of assurance regarding the 

authority’s arrangements for managing risk and 

maintaining an effective control environment

� And its recommendations are listened to and acted 

upon. 

We will:

Manage performance

We will do this by:

� Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, 

specification, execution and independent post 

implementation review

� Making decision based on relevant, clear objective 

analysis and advice pointing out the  implications and 

risks inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and 

environmental position and outlook

� Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in  

place which encourages effective and constructive 

challenge and debate on policies and objectives to 

support balanced and effective decision making 

� Providing Members and Senior Management with regular 

reports on service delivery plans and on progress 

towards outcome achievement 

� Ensuring there is consistency between specification 

stages (such as budgets) and post implementation 

reporting (e.g. financial statements). 

We will:

Manage Data

We will do this by:

� Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to 

safeguard personal data and preparations for compliance with the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) in May 2018. 

� Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies

� Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and performance monitoring. 

Principle F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and 

strong public financial management

P
age 22



Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services are answerable for them. Effective 

accountability is concerned not only with reporting on actions completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to 

understand and respond as the organisation plans and carries out its activities in a transparent manner. Both external and 

internal audit contribute to effective accountability. 

We will:

Implement good practice in transparency

We will do this by:

� Writing and communicating reports for the 

public and other stakeholders in a fair, 

balanced and understandable style appropriate 

to the intended audience and ensuring that they 

are easy to access and interrogate

� Striking a balance between providing  the right 

amount of information to satisfy transparency 

demands and enhance public scrutiny whilst 

not being too onerous to provide and for users 

to understand.

We will:

Provide assurance and effective accountability

We will do this by:

� Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by internal and external audit are acted upon

� Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to Members is in place, providing assurance with regard to governance 

arrangements and that recommendations are acted upon

� Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing recommendations

� Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and this is evidenced in the annual governance 

statement

� Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and the need for wider public accountability has 

been recognised and met. 

We will:

Implement good practices in reporting

We will do this by:

� Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and stewardship of 

resources

� Ensuring Members and Senior Management own the results

� Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles 

contained in this Framework have been applied and publishing the results on 

this assessment, including an action plan for improvement and evidence to 

demonstrate good governance (the Annual Governance Statement)

� Ensuring that this framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service 

organisations as appropriate 

� Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial 

statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the statements 

allow for comparison with other, similar organisations.

11

Principle G – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to 

deliver effective accountability

P
age 23



Code of 

Corporate  

Governance

Head of 

Paid 

Service

Monitoring 

Officer

Section 

151 

Officer

Property 

Manager

Devon Audit 

Partnership
External 

Audit

Human 

Resources

Governance 

Manager

OMT

Decision 

Notices and 

Minutes
O&S 

(Int/Ext) 

Committee

C&R 

Plans 

Licensing

Audit & 

Governance 

Committee

Standards 

Committee

Constitution

General 

Public

Members

Governance : Key Functions

12

P
age 24



Code of 

Corporate  

Governance

Head of 

Paid 

Service

Monitoring 

Officer

Section 

151 

Officer

Property 

Manager

Devon Audit 

Partnership

External 

Audit

Human 

Resources

Governance 

Manager

OMT

Grant Thornton

• Ensure economic, efficient, & effective 

public services

• Performance reports

• Financial reports

• VfM conclusions

Decision 

Notices and 

Minutes
O&S 

(Int/Ext) 

Committee

C&R 

Plans 

Licensing

Audit & 

Governance 

Committee

Standards 

Committee

Constitution

Scrutiny

• Independently review 

activities and decisions

• Review/develop policies

• Service reviews

General 

Public

Public Engagement

• Individual surgeries

• Town/Parish meetings

• Working parties

• Community groups

• Public consultations

Provide Assurance

• Risk management framework

• Control environment

• Performance Scrutiny

(financial & non-financial)

• Oversee financial reporting

• CIPFA compliance

Ethics

• Promote/maintain high 

standards

• Members code of conduct

• Investigate/report on 

breaches to the code

Members

Provide Assurance

• Produce Internal Audit Plan

• Execute Audit Plan

• Evaluate internal controls

• Regular reporting (A&G)

• Provide audit opinion

• Compliance with agreed polices & procedures

• Compliance with Accounts & Audit  Regs 2016

Standards

• Audit Practices 

Board

• CIPFA

• PSIAS

• IIA

Corporate Management

• Staff organisation

• Economic and effective delivery of 

Council objectives

• Compliance with section 4 of LG&H 

Act 1989

Deliver Services

• Business plan 

goals &objectives

• Council policies 

• Assurance 

statements

• Risk Management

Financial Management

• Ensure financial implications, 

opportunities & risks are fully considered 

for all material business decisions

• Promote and deliver good financial 

management

• Safeguard public monies

• Comply with Section 151 of the Local 

Govt. Act 1972

Legal & Ethical Assurance

• Monitor ethical standards

• Members code of conduct

• Standards Committee

• Openness & transparency

• Compliance with section 5 of LG&H 

Act 1989

• Date Security/Data Protection

• Prepare AGS and evidence

• Report writing protocol

• Update Strategic Plan

• Produce Business Plans & PIs

• Customer Complaints

• Communications Strategy

• Staff newsletter

• Member Induction & Bulletin

Asset Management

• Control asset register

• Control property database

• Conditions survey

• Review property requirements

• Asset disposal

• Report to AMWG and C&R

• Recruitment & selection

• Job evaluation

• Person specification

• Induction process

• Meet identified training needs

• Control staff changes (GWAF)

• Annual appraisal system

Governance:

Roles & 

Responsibilities

13

P
age 25



 
 

Agenda Item  

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer 

To: Audit and Governance Committee 

Subject: AGS - Review of Evidence 

Date: 21st January 2019 Reference:  

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  
To satisfy the Committee that the AGS Supporting Evidence reflects the governance framework 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 Paragraph 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2016 requires the Council to 

conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its control environment and to 
publish this in the Annual Governance Statement. 

 
 The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance which was last 

approved by Audit & Governance Committee on 20th November 2018.   
 
 The Annual Governance Statement was last approved by Audit & Governance Committee on 

23 July 2019.   
 
 A process is in place for Members of the Committee to review the evidence to support the 

Statement on a rolling basis.  
 
 

2. REPORT 
 
At the meeting on 29th November 2016 it was agreed that the Council should continue to look at 
governance evidence topics on a random basis, chosen by the Chair prior to each meeting. The 
Chair has chosen Principle D3 for review at the meeting on the 21 January 2020. 
 
Principal D is about Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the 
achievement of the intended outcomes; D3 is about Optimizing achievement of 
intended outcomes 
 
A copy of this section of the database is included in Appendix A and Members are invited 
either before, during or any time after the meeting, to select items for further interrogation, to 
satisfy themselves that the evidence accurately reflects the governance framework. 

 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
 
There is a legal requirement as part of approval of the annual statement of accounts 
 
Financial Implications 
 
None 

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Human Resources Implications 
 
None 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
 
N/A 
 
Equality/Diversity 
 
Equality Impact Assessment prepared 
 
Risk Management 
 
The evidence supporting the Annual Governance Statement reviews the Council’s 
governance arrangements including risk management and identifies areas for improvement 
that are identified in the action plan. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
 
Approval and adoption of the Annual Governance Statement is a key aspect of demonstrating 
that Torridge District Council has undertaken an annual review of its governance framework 
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Consultation date – Chair of A&G, Councillor Philip Hackett, on 3rd January 2020. 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 
The Committee having reviewed the evidence to support the Annual Governance Statement 
will then make suggestions to address any areas identified for improvement. 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that: 
 

 The evidence contained in section D3 of the supporting database is noted. 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations: Jenny Wallace, Head of Paid Service 

Staci Dory, Monitoring Officer 
Steve Hearse, Statutory Finance Officer 
Councillor Philip Hackett 
 

 Contact Officers: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer 
 

 Background Papers: Supporting Database 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 
 

D3  Optimising achievement of intended outcomes 
75% 

D3.1 Ensuring the medium term financial 
strategy integrates and balances 
service priorities, affordability and other 
resource constraints 

Feedback surveys and 
exit/decommissioning strategies 

MTFS takes account of various funding 
constraints: fair funding review; CIPFA 
resilience index; C Tax Referendum limits; 
Rural Delivery Grant; New Homes Bonus; 
National Business Rate Levy  Account; 
Social Care Grant Review; Business 
Rates; Council Tax. It also looks at 
pressures on the Council's budget, 
particularly: Homelessness; LGA pay 
awards; job evaluations, agency budgets; 
universal credit, LGA Pension Scheme.  
The MTFS also looks at the impact on 
Reserves and funding horizon.    

  

Budget 2018-19 MTFS - Full Council Report    

Member Workshops take place at which 
the Senior Management team update 
members on the latest position and discuss 
spending priorities 

  

Member Workshop Agenda September 2019   

Changes as a result Members have a number of opportunities 
(C&R, O&S Internal, and Full Council) to 
review the Council's financial 
arrangements and change the 
recommendations and conclusions. 

  

BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS FROM 
INTERNAL O&S  

  

Capital Program - Recommendations from C&R 
Feb 2019.  

  

FC Minutes Feb 2019.doc    

P
age 28

file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/6%20-%20Budget%202019-20%20MTFS%20-%20Full%20Council%2025th%20Feb.docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/FC%20RECOMMENDATIONS%20FROM%20INTERNAL%20OVERVIEW%20AND%20SCRUTINY.docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/FC%20RECOMMENDATIONS%20FROM%20INTERNAL%20OVERVIEW%20AND%20SCRUTINY.docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Capital%20Program%20-%20Recommendations%20from%20C&R%20Feb%202019.docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Capital%20Program%20-%20Recommendations%20from%20C&R%20Feb%202019.docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/FC%20Minutes%20Feb%202019.doc


 
 

D3.2 Ensuring the budgeting process is all-
inclusive, taking into account the full 
cost of operations over the medium 
and longer term 

Budget guidelines and protocols In order to for the Council to meet its 
Statutory requirements of setting a 
balanced budget, the Council  takes 
account of all planned income and 
expenditure proposed for the financial 
year. In addition the Council considers any 
significant risks it might face and review 
and implement measures to mitigate risk, 
which could include having sufficient 
financial reserves in place. 

  

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 
2003 requires the Chief Financial Officer 
(s151 Officer) of a billing or major 
precepting authority to report to Members 
on the following matters; the robustness of 
the estimates made for the purposes of the 
budget calculations; the adequacy of the 
proposed financial reserves contained 
within the budgets. 

  

Budget 2018-19 MTFS - Full Council Report    

D3.3 Ensuring the medium term financial 
strategy sets the context for ongoing 
decisions on significant delivery issues 
or responses to changes in the 
external environment that may arise 
during the budgetary period in order for 
outcomes to be achieved while 
optimising resource usage 

Financial Strategy TDC Capital Strategy 2019    

Budget 2018-19 MTFS - Full Council Report    

D3.4 Ensuring the achievement of ‘social 
value’ through service planning and 
commissioning. 

Service plans demonstrate 
consideration of 'social value' 

Torridge do not monitor this   

Achievement of 'social value' is 
monitored and reported upon 

 

P
age 29

file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/6%20-%20Budget%202019-20%20MTFS%20-%20Full%20Council%2025th%20Feb.docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/TDC%20Capital%20Strategy%20-%20Final%20Feb%202019.docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/6%20-%20Budget%202019-20%20MTFS%20-%20Full%20Council%2025th%20Feb.docx


Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Torridge District Council

Year ending 31 March 2020

21 January 2020

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 8



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress at 9 January 2020 4

Audit Deliverables 5

Annual Certification Report 7

Sector Update 13

2

P
age 31



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

This paper provides the Audit and Governance Committee with a report on 

progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

The paper also includes a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a 

local authority.

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a 

section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications. Click on the 

Grant Thornton logo to be directed to the website www.grant-thornton.co.uk .

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 

receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 

Engagement Manager.

/

Introduction

3

Alex Walling

Engagement Lead

T 0117 305 4804

M 07880 456 142

E alex.j.walling@uk.gt.com

Andy Davies

Engagement Manager

T 0117 305 7844

M 07747 006 786

E andrew.davies@uk.gt.com

PSAA Contract Monitoring – Torridge District Council opted into the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Appointing Person scheme which starts with the 2018/19 

audit. PSAA appointed Grant Thornton as auditors. PSAA is responsible under the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 for monitoring compliance with the contract and is 

committed to ensuring good quality audit services are provided by its suppliers. Details of PSAA’s audit quality monitoring arrangements are available from its website, www.psaa.co.uk.

P
age 32

http://www.grant-thornton.co.uk/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/


© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Progress at 9 January 2020

4

Financial Statements Audit

We will begin our planning for the 2019/20 audit in January and will issue a 

detailed audit plan, setting out our proposed approach to the audit of the 

Council's 2019/20 financial statements.

Our interim fieldwork includes:

• Updated review of the Council’s control environment

• Updated understanding of financial systems

• Review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems

• Early work on emerging accounting issues

• Early substantive testing

We will report the findings from our interim audit in our progress report.

Value for Money

The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued by the National Audit Office. 

The Code requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all significant respects, the 

audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 

and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers 

and local people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a conclusion overall are:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working with partners and other third parties

Details of our initial risk assessment to determine our approach will be included in our 

Audit Plan. 

The NAO is consulting on a new Code of Audit Practice from 2020 which proposes to 

make significant changes to Value for Money work.

P
age 33



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Other areas

Certification of claims and returns

We certify the Council’s annual Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with 

procedures agreed with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP). The certification 

work for the 2018/19 claim was completed on 6 December 2019, in line with the 

extended deadline granted by the DWP. 

The findings from our certification work are set out within this update report from page 7.

Meetings

We meet with the Head of Paid Service and Strategic Manager (Resources) as part of 

our regular liaison meetings, and continue to be in discussions with finance staff 

regarding emerging developments and to ensure the audit process is smooth and 

effective 

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with network events for members and 

publications to support the Council. Your officers have been invited to our Financial 

Reporting Workshops, which will help to ensure that members of your Finance Team are 

up to date with the latest financial reporting requirements for local authority accounts.  

The Bristol event is 30 January, with the Plymouth workshop on 11 February 2020.

Further details of the publications that may be of interest to the Council are set out in our 

Sector Update section of this report.

Audit Fees
During 2017, PSAA awarded contracts for audit for a five year period beginning on 1 April 

2018. 2019/20 is the second year of that contract. Since that time, there have been a 

number of developments within the accounting and audit profession. Across all sectors and 

firms, the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has set out its expectation of improved 

financial reporting from organisations and the need for auditors to demonstrate increased 

scepticism and challenge and to undertake additional and more robust testing. 

Our work in the Local Government sector in 2018/19 has highlighted areas where financial 

reporting, in particular, property, plant and equipment and pensions, needs to improve. 

There is also an increase in the complexity of Local Government financial transactions and 

financial reporting. This combined with the FRC requirement that all Local Government 

audits are at or above the “few improvements needed” (2A) rating means that additional 

audit work is required. 

We are currently reviewing the impact of these changes on both the cost and timing of 

audits. We will discuss this with your Strategic Manager (Resources) including any 

proposed variations to the Scale Fee set by PSAA Limited, before communicating fully with 

the Audit and Governance Committee. 

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC with regard 

to audit quality and local government financial reporting. 

Progress at 9 January 2020 (Cont.)

5

P
age 34



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Audit Deliverables

6

2018/19 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Annual Certification Report

This report communicates any matters arising from our certification work. January 2020 Complete

2019/20 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2018/19. April 2019 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit and Governance Committee setting out our 

proposed approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2019-20 financial statements and our initial 

value for money risk assessment.

March 2020 Not yet due

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit within our Progress Report. March 2020 Not yet due

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit and Governance Committee. July 2020 Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion. July 2020 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work. August 2020 Not yet due

P
age 35



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

We certify the Council’s annual Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with the Housing Benefit Assurance Process (HBAP)

procedures agreed with the Department for Work and Pensions. 

We have certified the Housing Benefit subsidy claim for the financial year 2018/19 relating to subsidy claimed of £15.7 million. Further 

details of this claim are set out in Appendix A.

We identified a number of issues from our certification work, which we wish to highlight for your attention. These are set out in the HBAP 

Report at Appendix B.

As a result of the errors identified, the claim was amended and we reported our findings to the DWP on 6 December 2019. The DWP may 

require the Council to undertake further work or provide assurances on the errors we have identified.

The base fee for 2018/19 for the Council was £15,301, with the fee for each additional set of 40+ testing being £3,720, as set out in our 

quote dated 30 April 2018.  While there was no 40+ testing, there were five separate errors that required additional site visits and audit 

time resulting in an additional fee of £5,128. The final fee is therefore £21,128.  This is set out in more detail in Appendix A.

Annual Certification Report

This section summarises our grants certification work and fees charged for 2018/19.

7

P
age 36



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Appendix A - Details of claims and returns 
certified for 2018/19

8

Claim or return Value Amended? Amendment (£) Exceptions/Errors? Comments

Housing benefits subsidy 
claim

£15,699,989 Yes 2,105 No The HBAP Report to the DWP sets out the 

results of our testing and is included at 
Appendix C.

Claim or return 2017/18 fee (£) 2018/19 base fee (£) 2018/19 actual fee (£) Variance (£) Explanation for variances

Housing benefits subsidy 
claim 

£8,220 £15,301 £21,128 £5,128 The 2017/18 fee was set by PSAA and was 

based on prior year fee levels rather than the 

amount of work required to complete the work.

The 2018/19 base fee was based on the 

estimated amount of work required to complete 

the testing.  Our quote included a fee of £3,720 

per set of additional 40+ testing. While there 

was no 40+ testing, there were five separate 

errors that required additional site visits and 

time to resolve the errors and their impact.  The 

additional audit time resulted in an additional 

fee of £5,128

P
age 37



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

6 December 2019

Dear Sirs

Housing Benefit (Subsidy) Assurance Process 2019 Module 6 DWP Reporting 

Framework Instruction (Applicable to England only) Reporting accountants’ report for the 

Housing Benefit Subsidy claim form MPF720A, year ended 31 March 2019

This report is produced in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter with 

Torridge District Council dated 15 June 2019 and the standardised engagement terms in 

Appendix 2 of HBAP Module 1 2018/19 issued by the Department for Work and Pensions 

(DWP) for the purpose of reporting to the Section 151 Officer of Torridge District Council 

and the DWP.

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of the Local Authority and the DWP 

and solely for the purpose of facilitating the claim for Housing Benefit Subsidy on form 

MPF720A dated 18 April 2019.

This report should not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as 

otherwise permitted by the standardised engagement terms), without our prior written 

consent. Without assuming or accepting any responsibility or liability in respect of this 

report to any party other than the local authority and the DWP, we acknowledge that the 

local authority and/or the DWP may be required to disclose this report to parties 

demonstrating a statutory right to see it.

This report is designed to meet the agreed requirements of Local Authority and the DWP 

as described in the DWP HBAP reporting framework instruction 2018/19.

This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied by any other 

party for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the Local Authority and the 

DWP which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report (or 

any part of it) will do so entirely at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 

accept no responsibility or liability in respect of our work or this report to any other party 

and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is 

caused by the reliance of anyone other than the addressees on our work or this report.

Respective responsibilities of the Local Authority and the reporting accountant

We conducted our engagement in accordance with HBAP Modules 1 and 6 2018/19 

issued by the DWP, which highlight the terms under which DWP has agreed to engage 

with reporting accountants.

The Section 151 Officer of the Local Authority has responsibilities under the Income-

related Benefits (Subsidy to Authorities) Order 1998. The section 151 Officer is also 

responsible for ensuring that the Local Authority maintains accounting records which 

disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any time, the financial position of the Local 

Authority. It is also the Section 151 Officer’s responsibility to extract relevant financial 

information from the Local Authority’s accounting records, obtain relevant information held 

by any officer of the Local Authority and complete the attached form MPF720A in 

accordance with the relevant framework set out by the DWP.

Our approach

For the purpose of the HBAP engagement we have been provided with a signed copy of 

form MPF720A 2018/19 dated 5 December 2019 by the Section 151 Officer. The Section 

151 Officer remains solely responsible for the completion of the MPF720A and is the 

signatory on the local authority’s certificate on claim form MPF720A.

Our engagement was carried out in accordance with the DWP reporting framework 

instruction which has been prepared in accordance with the International Standard on 

Related (ISRS) 4400, Engagement to perform agreed-upon-procedures regarding financial 

information. The purpose of the engagement is to perform the specific test requirements 

determined by the DWP on the defined sample basis as set out in HBAP Modules of the 

HBAP reporting framework instruction on the Local Authority’s form MPF720A dated 29 

April 2019 and to report the results of those procedures to the Local Authority and the 

DWP. 

The results of these are reported on in appendices A, B, C and D.

Appendix B – Torridge DC HBAP report to the 
DWP

9

P
age 38



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Inherent limitations

The procedures specified in DWP’s HBAP Reporting framework instruction does not 

constitute an examination made in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

standards, the objective of which would be the expression of assurance on the contents 

of the local authority’s claim for Housing Benefit subsidy on form MPF720A. Accordingly, 

we do not express such assurance. Had we performed additional procedures or had we 

performed an audit or review of the local authority’s claim for Housing Benefit subsidy on 

form MPF720A in accordance with generally accepted auditing or review standards, 

other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

This report relates only to the Local Authority’s form MPF720A and does not extend to 

any financial statements of the Local Authority, taken as a whole.

This engagement will not be treated as having any effect on our separate duties and 

responsibilities as the external auditor of the Local Authority’s financial statements. Our 

audit work on the financial statements of the Local Authority is carried out in accordance 

with our statutory obligations and is subject to separate terms and conditions. Our audit 

report on the Local Authority’s financial statements is made solely to the Local Authority’s 

members, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014. Our audit work was undertaken so that we might state to the Local Authority’s 

members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no 

other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than the Local Authority and the Local Authority’s 

members, as a body, for our audit work, for our audit reports, or for the opinions we have 

formed in respect of that audit.

Summary of HBAP report

Summary of Initial Testing

In accordance with HBAP modules an initial sample of cases was completed for all 

general expenditure cells. We completed the testing and have agreed the following 

results:

Cell 011 - Non HRA Rent Rebate misclassification of weekly rent liability between below 

and above cap

7 claims had not allocated the weekly rent liability correctly between below cap (cell 012) 

and above cap (cell 013).  The Authority identified all board and lodging and non self-

contained licensed accommodation in cells 012 and 013 and has tested each claim.

Appendix B – Torridge DC HBAP report to the 
DWP (cont.)

10

Cell 011 - Non HRA Rent Rebate Incorrect calculation of rent costs eligible / ineligible charges

Initial testing of cell 023 identified 1 claim, relating to hostel accommodation, where the rent 

costs were calculated incorrectly.  This arose due to the eligible / ineligible charges being 

updated on the system incorrectly.  The Authority identified all hostel accommodation in cell 023 

and has tested each claim.

Cell 011 - Non HRA Rent Rebate misclassification of weekly rent liability between below and 

above cap

1 claim had not allocated the weekly rent liability correctly between below cap (cell 014) and 

above cap (cell 015).  The Authority identified all short-term leased and self-contained licensed 

accommodation in cells 014 and 015 and has tested each claim.  

Cell 011 - Non HRA Rent Rebate Incorrect classification of accommodation

1 claim had classified bed and breakfast accommodation as self-contained accommodation, 

instead of board and lodging accommodation.  The Authority identified all short-term leased and 

self-contained license accommodation in cells 014 and 015 and has tested each claim.  

Cell 011 - Non HRA Rent Rebate Incorrect classification of overpayments

2 claims had classified overpayments as claimant error / other (cell 028), instead of LA error / 

administrative delay overpayments (cell 026).  The Authority identified all eligible overpayments 

in cell 028 and has tested each claim.  

Cell 094 Rent Allowance

No claims were found to be in error.

Completion of Modules

Completion of Module 2

We have completed the uprating checklist and no issues were identified.

Completion of module 5 

We have completed the questionnaire for the appropriate software supplier and no issues were 

identified. 

P
age 39



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Summary of testing arising from Cumulative Assurance Knowledge and 

Experience 

In line with the requirements of HBAP Modules we have undertaken CAKE testing based 

upon the amendments to the previous year’s subsidy claim (as there was no qualification 

letter).  Where appropriate the Authority has completed testing of the sub populations for:

Non HRA Rent Rebates - Misclassification of weekly rent liability between below and 

above cap (ie, between cells 012 and 013).

Non HRA Rent Rebates – Incorrect classification of self-contained accommodation as 

bed and breakfast accommodation (ie, board and lodging accommodation), so incorrectly 

allocated to cell 012/013.

We have re-performed a sample of the Authority’s testing and confirm the tests we have 

carried out concur with the Authority’s results.  These results are outlined in the 

appropriate appendix.

The following CAKE test has returned no errors and is considered as closed:

Non HRA Rent Rebates – Incorrect classification of self-contained accommodation as 

bed and breakfast accommodation (ie, board and lodging accommodation), so incorrectly 

allocated to cell 012/013.

Summary paragraph/ending of letter

For the form MPF720A dated 18 April 2019 for the year ended 31 March 2019 we have 

completed the specific test requirements detailed in the DWP reporting framework 

instruction HBAP and have identified the following results set out in Appendix A, B, C and 

D).

Firm of accountants: Grant Thornton UK LLP

Office: Bristol

Contact details (person, phone and email): Alex Walling, 0117 305 7804, 

Alex.J.Walling@uk.gt.com

Date: 6 December 2019

Appendix B – Torridge DC HBAP report to the 
DWP (cont.)

11

Appendix A Exceptions/errors found

There are no errors to report here, as the whole population of the affected cells have been 

tested and amendments made to the claim (see Appendix C for results).

Appendix B Observations

There are no observations to report.

Appendix C: Amendments to the claim form MPF720A

A number of amendments have been made to the claim, which are detailed below.

Cell 012/013 Board and lodging and non self-contained licensed accommodation 

misclassification of weekly rent liability between below and above cap

Initial testing found 7 claims in cells 012/013 had not allocated the weekly rent liability 

correctly between below cap (cell 012) and above cap (cell 013).  The Authority tested all 

claims in cells 012 and 013 and confirmed that Cell 012 is overstated by £1,002.83 and Cell 

013 is understated by £1,239.83.

The number of cases in Cell 012/013 is 101, although we tested 15 as part of our discovery 

testing, leaving a residual number of cases of 86. We re-performed the test on 9 cases.  The 

Authority’s findings on those claims were correct.

This is reflected in the amendment made to Form MPF720a dated 5 December 2019.

Cell 023 Other (hostel) accommodation rent costs incorrectly calculated

Initial testing found 1 claim in cell 023, relating to hostel accommodation, where the rent costs 

were calculated incorrectly.  The Authority tested all claims in cell 023 and confirmed that Cell 

023 is overstated by £146.62 and Cell 026 is understated by the same amount.

The number of cases in Cell 023 is 45, although we tested 8 as part of our discovery testing, 

leaving a residual number of cases of 37. We re-performed the test on 4 cases  The 

Authority’s findings on those claims were correct.

This is reflected in the amendment made to Form MPF720a dated 5 December 2019.

P
age 40



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Cell 014/015 Short-term leased and self-contained licensed accommodation 

misclassification of weekly rent liability between below and above cap

Initial testing found 1 claim in cells 014/015 had not allocated the weekly rent liability 

correctly between below cap (cell 014) and above cap (cell 015).  The Authority tested all 

claims in cells 014 and 015 and confirmed that Cell 014 is understated by £3.86 and Cell 

015 is overstated by the same amount.

The number of cases in Cell 014/015 is 14, although we tested 2 as part of our discovery 

testing, leaving a residual number of cases of 12. We re-performed the test on 2 cases.  

The Authority’s findings on those claims were correct.

This is reflected in the amendment made to Form MPF720a dated 5 December 2019.

Cell 014/015 Short-term leased and self-contained licensed accommodation 

incorrect classification of accommodation

Initial testing found 1 claim in cells 014/015 had classified bed and breakfast 

accommodation as self-contained accommodation, instead of board and lodging 

accommodation, so it should have been allocated to cell 012/013.  The Authority tested 

all claims in cells 014 and 015 and confirmed that Cell 014 is overstated by £972.32, Cell 

015 is overstated by £1,677.64, Cell 012 is understated by £800.77 and Cell 013 is 

understated by £1,612.19.  

The number of cases in Cell 014/015 is 14, although we tested 2 as part of our discovery 

testing, leaving a residual number of cases of 12. We re-performed the test on 2 cases.  

The Authority’s findings on those claims were correct.

This is reflected in the amendment made to Form MPF720a dated 5 December 2019.

Cell 028 Eligible overpayments misclassification

Initial testing found 2 claims had classified overpayments as claimant error / other (cell 

028), instead of LA error / administrative delay overpayments (cell 026).  The Authority 

tested all claims in cell 028 and confirmed that Cell 028 is overstated by £5,472.53 and 

Cell 026 is understated by the same amount.

The number of cases in Cell 028 is 41, although we tested 9 as part of our discovery 

testing, leaving a residual number of cases of 32. We re-performed the test on 4 cases.  

The Authority’s findings on those claims were correct.

This is reflected in the amendment made to Form MPF720a dated 5 December 2019.

Appendix B – Torridge DC HBAP report to the 
DWP (cont.)

12

Appendix D Additional issues

There are no additional issues to report.

P
age 41



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Local government finances are at a tipping point. 

Councils are tackling a continuing drive to 

achieve greater efficiency in the delivery of 

public services, whilst facing the challenges to 

address rising demand, ongoing budget 

pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of 

emerging national issues and developments to support you. We 

cover areas which may have an impact on your organisation, the 

wider NHS and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to 

the detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find 

out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research 

on service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest 

research publications in this update. We also include areas of 

potential interest to start conversations within the organisation and 

with audit committee members, as well as any accounting and 

regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

13

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 

government sections on the Grant Thornton website

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local government sector 

specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

P
age 42



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Financial Reporting Council – Summary of key 
developments for 2019/20 annual reports

On 30 October the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) wrote 

an Open Letter to Company Audit Committee Chairs. Some 

of the points are relevant to local authorities.

The reporting environment

The FRC notes that, “In times of uncertainty, whether created by political events, general 

economic conditions or operational challenges, investors look for greater transparency in 

corporate reports to inform their decision-making. We expect companies to consider carefully 

the detail provided in those areas of their reports which are exposed to heightened levels of 

risk; for example, descriptions of how they have approached going concern considerations, 

the impact of Brexit and all areas of material estimation uncertainty.” These issues equally 

affect local authorities, and the Statement of Accounts or Annual Report should provide 

readers with sufficient appropriate information on these topics.

Critical judgements and estimates

The FRC wrote “More companies this year made a clear distinction between the critical 

judgements they make in preparing their accounts from those that involve the making of 

estimates and which lead to different disclosure requirements. However, some provided 

insufficient disclosures to explain this area of their reporting where a particular judgement 

had significant impact on their reporting; for example, whether a specific investment was a 

joint venture or a subsidiary requiring consolidation. We will continue to have a key focus on 

the adequacy of disclosures supporting transparent reporting of estimation uncertainties. An 

understanding of their sensitivity to changing assumptions is of critical value to investors, 

giving them clearer insight into the possible future changes in balance sheet values and 

which can inform their investment decisions.” Critical judgements and estimates also form a 

crucial part of local authority statements of account, with the distinction often blurred.

IFRS 16 Leases

The FRC letter notes “IFRS 16 is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 

We recently conducted a thematic review looking at how companies reported on their 

adoption of the new standard in their June 2019 interim accounts. In advance of our detailed 

findings which will be published shortly, I set out what we expect to see by way of 

disclosures in the forthcoming accounts, drawing on the results of our work.

• Clear explanation of the key judgements made in response to the new reporting 

requirements;

• Effective communication of the impact on profit and loss, addressing any lack of 

comparability with the prior year;

• Clear identification of practical expedients used on transition and accounting policy choices; 

and

• Well explained reconciliation, where necessary, of operating lease commitments under IAS 

17, ‘Leases’, the previous standard and lease liabilities under IFRS 16.”

The implementation of IFRS is delayed until 1 April 2020 in the public sector when it will 

replace IAS 17 Leases and the three interpretations that supported its application. 

Authorities will need information and processes in place to enable them to comply with the 

requirements. They will need to make disclosures in the 2019/20 accounts about the impact 

of IFRS 16 in accordance with IAS 8/ Code 3.3.4.3 requirements for disclosure about 

standards which are issued but are not yet effective.

14

P
age 43



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

What is the future for local audit?
Paul Dossett, Head of local government at Grant Thornton, 

has written in the Municipal Journal “Audit has been a hot 

topic of debate this year and local audit is no exception. With 

a review into the quality of local audit now ongoing, it’s critical 

that part of this work looks at the overarching governance and 

management of the audit regime. We believe there is a strong 

need for new oversight arrangements if the local audit regime 

is to remain sustainable and effective in the future.”

Paul goes on to write “Local (local authority and NHS) audit has been a key part of the 

oversight regime for public services for more than a century. The National Audit Office (NAO) 

has exercised this role in central government for several generations and their reporting to 

Parliament via the Public Accounts Committee is a key part of the public spending 

accountability framework.

Local audit got a significant boost with the creation of the Audit Commission in 1983 which 

provided a coordinated, high profile focus on local government and (from 1990) NHS 

spending and performance at a local level. Through undertaking value for money reviews 

and maintaining a tight focus on the generational governance challenges, such as rate 

capping in the 1980s and service governance failings in the 1990s, the Commission provided 

a robust market management function for the local audit regime. Local audit fees, 

appointments, scope, quality and relevant support for auditors all fell within their ambit.

However, the Commission was ultimately deemed, among other things, to be too expensive 

and was abolished in 2010, as part of the Coalition Government’s austerity saving plans. 

While the regime was not perfect, and the sector had acknowledged that reform of the 

Commission was needed, complete abolition was not the answer.

Since then, there has been no body with complete oversight of the local audit regime and 

how it interacts with local public services. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government; Department of Health; NHS; NAO; Local Government Association (LGA); 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA); the Financial Reporting Council (FRC); the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA), audit firms and the audited 

bodies themselves all have an important role to play but, sometimes, the pursuit of individual 

organisational objectives has resulted in sub-optimal and even conflicting outcomes for the 

regime overall.

These various bodies have pursued separate objectives in areas such as audit fee reduction, 

scope of work, compliance with commercial practice, earlier reporting deadlines and 

mirroring commercial accounting conventions – to name just a few.

This has resulted in a regime that no stakeholder is wholly satisfied with and one that does 

not ensure local audit is providing a sufficiently robust and holistic oversight of public 

spending.

To help provide a more cohesive and co-ordinated approach within the sector, we believe 

that new oversight arrangements should be introduced. These would have ultimate 

responsibility for ensuring the sustainability of the local audit regime and that its component 

parts – including the Audit Code, regulation, market management and fees – interact in an 

optimal way. While these arrangements do not need to be another Audit Commission, we 

need to have a strategic approach to addressing the financial sustainability challenges facing 

local government and the NHS, the benchmarking of performance and the investigation of 

governance failings.

There are a number of possible solutions including:

1) The creation of a new arm’s length agency with a specific remit for overseeing and 

joining up local audit. It would provide a framework to ensure the sustainability of the 

regime, covering fees, appointments, and audit quality. The body would also help to 

create a consistent voice to government and relevant public sector stakeholders on key 

issues arising from the regime. Such a body would need its own governance structure 

drawn from the public sector and wider business community; and

2) Extending the current remit of the NAO. Give it total oversight of the local audit regime 

and, in effect, establish a local audit version of the NAO, with all the attendant powers 

exercised in respect of local audit. In this context, there would be a need to create 

appropriate governance for the various sectors, similar to the Public Accounts 

Committee.

While the detail of the new arrangements would be up for debate, it’s clear that a new type of 

oversight body, with ultimate responsibility for the key elements of local audit, is needed. It 

would help to provide much-needed cohesion across the sector and between its core 

stakeholders.

The online article is available here:

https://www.themj.co.uk/What-is-the-future-for-audit/214769

15

P
age 44

https://www.themj.co.uk/What-is-the-future-for-audit/214769


© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Grant Thornton’s Sustainable Growth Index 
Report
Grant Thornton has launched the Sustainable Growth Index 

(formerly the Vibrant Economy Index) – now in its third year.  

The Sustainable Growth Index seeks to define and measure 

the components that create successful places. Our aim in 

establishing the Index was to create a tool to help frame 

future discussions between all interested parties, stimulate 

action and drive change locally. We have undergone a 

process of updating the data for English Local Authorities on 

our online, interactive tool, and have produced an updated 

report on what the data means.  All information is available 

our on our online hub, where you can read the new report and 

our regional analyses. 

The Sustainable Growth Index provides an independent, data-led scorecard for each local 

area that provides:

• businesses with a framework to understand their local economy and the issues that will 

affect investment decisions both within the business and externally, a tool to support their 

work with local enterprise partnerships, as well as help inform their strategic purpose and 

CSR plans in light of their impact on the local social and economic environment

• policy-makers and place-shapers with an overview of the strengths, opportunities and 

challenges of individual places as well as the dynamic between different areas

• Citizens with an accessible insight into how their place is doing, so that they can contribute 

to shaping local discussions about what is important to them

The Index shows the 'tip of the iceberg' of data sets and analysis our public services 

advisory team can provide our private sector clients who are considering future locations in 

the UK, or wanting to understand the external drivers behind why some locations perform 

better than others. 

Our study looks at over 50 indicators to evaluate all the facets of a place and where they 

excel or need to improve.

Our index is divided into six baskets. These are:

1 Prosperity

2 Dynamism and opportunity

3 Inclusion and equality

4 Health, wellbeing and happiness

5 Resilience and sustainability

6 Community trust and belonging

This year’s index confirms that cities have a consistent

imbalance between high scores related to prosperity, 

dynamism and opportunity, and low scores for health, 

wellbeing, happiness inclusion and equality. Disparity 

between the richest and poorest in these areas 

represents a considerable challenge for those places.

Inclusion and equality remains a challenge for both highly urban and highly rural places and 

coastal areas, particularly along the east coast from the North East to Essex and Kent, face 

the most significant challenges in relation to these measures and generally rank below 

average.

Creating sustainable growth matters and to achieve this national policy makers and local 

authorities need to do seven things:

1 Ensure that decisions are made on the basis of robust local evidence.

2 Focus on the transformational trends as well as the local enablers

3 Align investment decisions to support the creation of sustainable growth

4 Align new funding to support the creation of sustainable growth

5 Provide space for innovation and new approaches

6 Focus on place over organisation

7 Take a longer-term view

The online report is available here:

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/sustainable-growth-index-how-does-your-place-

score/

16

P
age 45

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/sustainable-growth-index-how-does-your-place-score/


© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Institute for Fiscal Studies – English local 
government funding: trends and challenges in 
2019 and beyond

The Institute for Fiscal Studies (IFS) has found “The 2010s 

have been a decade of major financial change for English 

local government. Not only have funding levels – and hence 

what councils can spend on local services – fallen 

significantly; major reforms to the funding system have seen 

an increasing emphasis on using funding to provide financial 

incentives for development via initiatives such as the 

Business Rates Retention Scheme (BRRS) and the New 

Homes Bonus (NHB).”

The IFS goes on to report “Looking ahead, increases in council tax and additional grant 

funding from central government mean a boost to funding next year – but what about the 

longer term, especially given plans for further changes to the funding system, including an 

expansion of the BRRS in 2021–22?

This report, the first of what we hope will be an annual series of reports providing an up-to-

date analysis of local government, does three things in this context. First, it looks in detail at 

councils’ revenues and spending, focusing on the trends and choices taken over the last 

decade. Second, it looks at the outlook for local government funding both in the short and 

longer term. And third, it looks at the impact of the BRRS and NHB on different councils’ 

funding so far, to see whether there are lessons to guide reforms to these policies.

The report focuses on those revenue sources and spending areas over which county, district 

and single-tier councils exercise real control. We therefore exclude spending on police, fire 

and rescue, national park and education services and the revenues specifically for these 

services. When looking at trends over time, we also exclude spending on and revenues 

specifically for public health, and make some adjustments to social care spending to make 

figures more comparable across years. Public health was only devolved to councils in 2013–

14, and the way social care spending is organised has also changed, with councils receiving 

a growing pot of money from the NHS to help fund services.”

The IFS reports a number of key facts and figures, including

1) Cuts to funding from central government have led to a 17% fall in councils’ spending on 

local public services since 2009–10 – equal to 23% or nearly £300 per person.

2) Local government has become increasingly reliant on local taxes for revenues.

3) Councils’ spending is increasingly focused on social care services – now 57% of all 

service budgets.

The IFS report is available on their website below:

https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/14563

17

P
age 46

https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/14563


© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 

and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 

for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 47



 
  

Agenda Item  

REPORT OF DAP Partnership Manager 

To: Audit & Governance Committee  

Subject: Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption – Self Assessment 

Date: 21st January 2020 Reference:  

 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To advise the Audit & Governance Committee of the results of a self 
assessment against the CIPFA code of practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and corruption.   
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
CIPFA’s Counter Fraud Centre has prepared a code of practice on managing the risk of fraud 
and corruption.  
 
The guidance emphasises the need for public service organisations to take responsibility to 
embed effective standards for countering fraud and corruption in their organisation. This 
supports good governance and demonstrates effective financial stewardship and strong public 
management. 
 
This guidance is supplemented by the government’s “Fighting Fraud Locally – the Local 
Government Fraud Strategy”. 
 
In 2019 CIPFA prepared a Fraud and Corruption Tracker report. The report recognises that 
each pound lost to fraud represents a loss to the public purse and reduces the ability of the 
public sector to provide services to people who need them. According to the Annual Fraud 
Indicator 2017, which provides the latest set of government sanctioned estimates, fraud costs 
the public sector at least £40.3bn annually, £7.8bn of which is specifically in local government. 
 
Fraud is a widespread cause of concern in the public sector and remains a constant financial 
threat to local authorities. For local authorities in the UK, CIPFA has estimated that the total 
value of fraud detected or prevented in 2018/19 is approximately £253m, averaging roughly 
£3,600 per fraud case. In 2017/18 there was an estimated value of £302m with a similar 
average of £3,600 per case detected or prevented. 
 
The charts below provide a breakdown of the fraud reported by local authorities. 
 
 
 

Page 48

Agenda Item 9



 
  

 

 
 
 

The decrease in the total value can be largely 
attributed to the successful work by public 
authorities in housing, which has seen a year-
on-year reduction in the total number of 
unlawfully sublet properties and false right to 
buy applications. 

 

 
 
Councils reported that approximately 71,000 
instances of fraud had been detected or 
prevented in 2018/19, which is lower than the 
approximate 80,000 reported by CIPFA in 
2017/18.  
 
Council tax fraud represents 78% of these 
identified instances of fraud with an estimated 
value of £30.6m followed by disabled parking 
concession (Blue Badge scheme) and housing 
frauds representing 10% and 5% of the total 

cases of UK public sector fraud, respectively. 

 
Not all of the above fraud risks are relevant to Torridge, but the charts and information in the 
report, do provide guidance on possible fraud areas and how to prevent, detect and investigate 
such fraud. 
 
 

2. SELF ASSESSMENT REPORT 
The attached report is a self assessment of the standards in place at Torridge Council against 
the CIPFA code of practice (see Appendix A). 
 

 Members of the Committee will note that, by and large, effective and appropriate standards 
are in place. There is an ongoing need to ensure that policies and procedures follow best 
practice and legislative requirements, and regular updates of practices assists in this.  Overall 
there are good principles to prevent, detect and investigate instances of fraud and corruption. 

 
Internal Audit will continue to ensure that standards and practices are embedded, and remain 
effective at deterring and preventing fraud. 
 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 
Legal Implications 
Compliance with the CIPFA code of practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption. 

Page 49



 
  

 
Financial Implications 
None 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None 
 
Sustainability Implications 
None 
 
Equality/Diversity 
None 
 
Risk Management 
The external auditor provides members with assurance on the Financial Statements. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
None 
 
Ward Member and Lead Member Views 
Not consulted in advance of meeting. 
 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
Overall the self assessment provides good assurance that sound and effective fraud 
prevention arrangements are in operation. 
 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
Committee are asked to note: 
That Internal Audit reviews continue to ensure that procedures remain effective and are 
updated as required to counter new and emerging fraud threats. 
 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations: Jenny Wallace, Head of Paid Service  

Steve Hearse, Statutory Finance Officer 
 

 Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer  

 Background Papers: CIPFA code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 
Corruption 
 

Page 50



 
  

 

Page 51



Appendix A 

Torridge District Council 

Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption  

Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally (2016 – 2019) self-assessment of compliance 

January 2020 

Introduction 

CIPFA has prepared a Fighting Fraud & Corruption locally strategy, companion and checklist; 

it is against this checklist that the self-assessment has been completed. 

The CIPFA strategy and companion are recommended reading, and can be simply 

downloaded, free of charge, from the CIPFA website. Simply go to the CIPFA website 

(cipfa.org) and search for “Fighting Fraud and Corruption”, or follow this link 

https://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally 

 
In response to the risks and challenges that fraud presents, local authorities are expected to 
follow three key principles:- 
 

 Acknowledge: acknowledging and understanding fraud risks and committing support 
and resource to tackling fraud in order to maintain a robust anti-fraud response. 

 Prevent: preventing and detecting more fraud by making better use of information 
and technology, enhancing fraud controls and processes and developing a more 
effective anti-fraud culture. 

 Pursue: punishing fraudsters and recovering losses by prioritising the use of civil 
sanctions, developing capability and capacity to investigate fraudsters and 
developing a more collaborative and supportive law enforcement response. 

 
CIPFA reports that local authorities have achieved success by following this approach; 
however, they now need to respond to an increased threat, and further develop and 
enhance their counter fraud response by ensuring that it is comprehensive and effective 
and focused on the key changes that will make the most difference. 
 
Counter fraud response should be considered against each six key themes:-  

 Culture  

 Capability  

 Capacity  

 Competence  

 Communication  

 Collaboration  
 

Page 52

https://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally


The following pages set out the expected response from a local authority, and our 
assessment of Torridge’s arrangements against expectations. 
  

CIPFA expected Local Authority response to 
the risk of fraud and corruption. 

Torridge current position and 

1. The local authority has made a proper 
assessment of its fraud and corruption risks, 
has an action plan to deal with them and 
regularly reports to its senior Board and its 
members. 

The Authority annually prepares a Fraud and 
Corruption risk register. This identifies the risks and 
the controls in place to address these risks. 

This is considered by the Senior Management Team. 

The Corporate Risk Register, which incorporates the 
risk for fraud, is taken to the Audit & Governance 
Committee. 

2. The local authority has undertaken an 
assessment against the risks in Protecting the 
Public Purse: Fighting Fraud Against Local 
Government (2014) and has also undertaken 
horizon scanning of future potential fraud and 
corruption risks.  

Yes. 

The fraud risks to the Authority are assessed at least 
annually, and are updated as and when new risks 
arise. 

In terms of horizon scanning, internal audit (DAP) 
provide updates on emerging fraud risks and the 
Devon Audit Group also helps to inform officers of 
locally developing issues. 

A local network of key contacts also helps to identify 
trends and developments. 

3. There is an annual report to the audit 
committee, or equivalent detailed 
assessment, to compare against Fighting 
Fraud and Corruption Locally (FFCL) 2016 and 
this checklist.  

Yes.  

Each year a report is taken to the Audit & Governance 
Committee, reporting the results of a self-assessment 
against the CIPFA code of practice on Managing the 
Risk of Fraud and corruption. 

4. There is a counter fraud and corruption 
strategy applying to all aspects of the local 
authority’s business which has been 
communicated throughout the local authority 
and acknowledged by those charged with 
governance.  

Yes. 

The Authority has in place an Anti-Fraud, Corruption 
Bribery Policy and Strategy.  This was updated in 
October 2019, with next review scheduled for 
February 2022/23 or as required. 

The Strategy is taken to, and approved by, the Audit 
& Governance Committee. 

5. The local authority has arrangements in 
place that are designed to promote and 
ensure probity and propriety in the conduct 
of its business. 

Yes.  

Section 5 of the Strategy sets out various policy 
statements that cover staff, members, partner 
organisations and members of the public, which 
ensure probity and propriety are in place. 

However, no system or process can ever be 100% 
secure, and so employee diligence is always needed, 
and this referred to in section 6 “deterrence and 

Page 53



prevention”. 

The Council includes anti-bribery clauses in contracts 
with third parties and agents. 

6. The risks of fraud and corruption are 
specifically considered in the local authority’s 
overall risk management process. 

Yes. 

A specific fraud and corruption risk entry is recorded 
in the risk register. 

7. Counter fraud staff are consulted to fraud-
proof new policies, strategies and initiatives 
across departments and this is reported upon 
to committee. 

The Authority does not have a dedicated “counter 
fraud” team and so this role is undertaken by a range 
of officers, including the Service Improvement Officer 
and Internal Audit (DAP. 

New policies and strategies are always considered in 
the light of possible fraud and corruption and are 
designed to limit such exposure. 

8. Successful cases of proven 
fraud/corruption are routinely publicised to 
raise awareness.  

Successful cases of proven fraud / corruption are 
reported in the local paper. 

In addition, such cases will be referred to in the 
internal newsletter and the Members Bulletin. 

9. The local authority has put in place 
arrangements to prevent and detect fraud 
and corruption and a mechanism for ensuring 
that this is effective and is reported to 
committee.  

All systems are designed to prevent fraud occurring. 
The diligence of management and staff is also key in 
this. 

A risk assessment is undertaken of the key risks of 
fraud, and the controls in place to prevent this taking 
place. 

The annual Internal Audit plan is prepared taking in to 
account risks, which include fraud risks. Internal audit 
will provide assessment on the effectiveness of 
controls, and test controls to ensure that they are 
being complied with in practice. 

The Audit and Governance Committee is provided 
reports on risk, and the results of Internal Audit, and 
this, combined with management assessment of 
controls, is summarised in the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

The Strategy at 5.9 refers to “any major instances of 
fraud being reported to the next Audit & Governance 
Committee….” 

10. The local authority has put in place 
arrangements for monitoring compliance with 
standards of conduct across the local 
authority covering:  

 

– codes of conduct including behaviour for 
counter fraud, anti-bribery and corruption  

Yes.  

The Strategy, section 6.9 to 6.14 refers to the code of 
conduct for staff and at 6.15 to 6.17 the code of 

Page 54



conduct for members. 
As expected there is a member’s code of conduct that 
was prepared in August 2018. 
 

– register of interests  A register of member interests is maintained against 
each member and is publicly available on the 
Councils internet pages. 

 
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11788/Code-
of-Conduct-and-Register-of-Members-Interests 
 
 

– register of gifts and hospitality.  Yes. 
A register of gifts and hospitality is maintained, and 
this is published on line. 
 
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12766/Gifts-
and-Hospitality-Register 
 

11. The local authority undertakes 
recruitment vetting of staff prior to 
employment by risk assessing posts and 
undertaking the checks recommended in FFCL 
2016 to prevent potentially dishonest 
employees from being appointed.  

TDC have two policies; ‘recruitment’ and 
‘employment screening’ which cover the employee 
vetting.  All offers of employment are subject to 
satisfactory pre employment checks.   

Mandatory checks include :- 

 References  

 Verification of employment history 

 Verification of professional qualifications and 
memberships  

 Verification of ID , nationality and immigration 
status and right to work in the UK  

 Medical clearance 
 

Some posts require additional checks including 

 DBS 

 Credit checks 

 Checks on company directorships held, 
resigned or disqualified from (not routinely 
undertaken) 

12. Members and staff are aware of the need 
to make appropriate disclosures of gifts, 
hospitality and business. This is checked by 
auditors and reported to committee.  

Yes. 

At the start of each meeting a declaration of interests 
is requested. 

The Service Improvement Officer will remind all 
officers and members of the need to declare all offers 
of gifts and hospitality. Such a reminder is made in 
the internal newsletter, around Christmas time each 

Page 55

https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11788/Code-of-Conduct-and-Register-of-Members-Interests
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11788/Code-of-Conduct-and-Register-of-Members-Interests
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12766/Gifts-and-Hospitality-Register
https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12766/Gifts-and-Hospitality-Register


year. 

13. There is a programme of work to ensure a 
strong counter fraud culture across all 
departments and delivery agents led by 
counter fraud experts.  

There is an annual calendar that supports the staff 
newsletter to ensure that fraud awareness updates 
are provided at least biannually, whistleblowing 
reminders are provided biannually, and gift & 
hospitality reminders are provided yearly. 

14. There is an independent whistle-blowing 
policy which is monitored for take-up and can 
show that suspicions have been acted upon 
without internal pressure. 

Yes. 
A separate whistleblowing policy is in place due to be 
updated January 2020. 
This includes the Policy, employee guide and 
Managers guide. 
All such alerts and reports will be monitored for 
intelligence purposes. 

15. Contractors and third parties sign up to 
the whistle-blowing policy and there is 
evidence of this. There should be no 
discrimination against whistle-blowers. 

At present the whistleblowing policy applies to all 
Council workers, including elected and co-opted 
Members, employees, staff of Council contractors, 
suppliers of goods and services and agency staff. 

 

16. Fraud resources are assessed 
proportionately to the risk the local authority 
faces and are adequately resourced. 

Since the transfer of benefits counter fraud staff to 
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), fraud 
resources have been limited. 

However, the internal audit provider (DAP) recently 
expanded its service provision by taking on the 
Counter Fraud Team, currently working solely at 
Plymouth. The team has 7 fully trained and qualified 
counter fraud specialists. The Authority will look to 
“call off” resources as and when the need arises. 

  

17. There is an annual fraud plan which is 
agreed by committee and reflects resources 
mapped to risks and arrangements for 
reporting outcomes. This plan covers all areas 
of the local authority’s business and includes 
activities undertaken by contractors and third 
parties or voluntary sector activities. 

There is no annual fraud plan as such. 

However, there are a range of “work programmes” 
that are prepared each year, including actions arising 
for the Annual Governance Review process, Risk 
Management and Internal Audit. 

The elements of each of these various plans enables 
senior management to be assured that suitable 
resources are being allocated to prevent, detect and 
investigate fraud. 

However, it should be noted that the current level of 
referrals of fraud and corruption are limited. 

18. Statistics are kept and reported by the 
fraud team which cover all areas of activity 
and outcomes.  

The Strategic Improvement Officer, in conjunction 
with the S151 officer, will maintain a record of 
referrals. 

However, and as referred to above, there is no 

Page 56



separate fraud team. 

19. Fraud officers have unfettered access to 
premises and documents for the purposes of 
counter fraud investigation.  

As stated above there are no dedicated “fraud 
officers”.  

However, in such instances then such access would 
be granted. For example, if DAP were asked to 
conduct an investigation using their Counter Fraud 
Team, then “full access” would be granted as per the 
service level agreement already in place.  

20. There is a programme to publicise fraud 
and corruption cases internally and externally 
which is positive and endorsed by the 
council’s communication team.  

Not a programme as such, but cases will be publicised 
in the local newspaper and via the internal newsletter 
and the Members bulletin. 

21. All allegations of fraud and corruption are 
risk assessed.  

Yes. Each referral or suspicion will be “risk assessed” 
before embarking upon a course of action 
proportionate to the issue and in line with Torridge’s 
“zero tolerance” policy. 

22. The fraud and corruption response plan 
covers all areas of counter fraud work:  

 Prevention 

 Detection 

 Investigation 

 Sanctions 

 Redress 

As mentioned above, there is no response plan as 
such, however the Strategy ensures that each of 
these elements is considered. 

23. The fraud response plan is linked to the 
audit plan and is communicated to senior 
management and members.  

See above 

24. Asset recovery and civil recovery is 
considered in all cases. 

Yes.  Section 7.9 to 7.12 of the Strategy deal with 
Sanctions and Redress. 

25. There is a zero tolerance approach to 
fraud and corruption which is always reported 
to committee. 

Yes  - there is a “zero tolerance approach to fraud, 
endorsed by the Audit & Governance Committee.  

Instances of fraud and corruption are reported to the 
Audit & Governance Committee. Due to the sensitive 
nature of some instances, this may be in summary 
form. 

26. There is a programme of proactive 
counter fraud work which covers risks 
identified in assessment.  

Proactive counter fraud work is delivered in a variety 
of ways each year. Some examples of how this is 
achieved include:- 

 Participation in the bi-annual National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI) 

 Elements of internal audit work focused on 
controls that may be more susceptible to fraud 
risk 

 Work by Service Managers – such as Council Tax 

Page 57



Single Persons Discount review 

 

27. The fraud team works jointly with other 
enforcement agencies and encourages a 
corporate approach and co-location of 
enforcement activity.  

There is no “fraud team” as such, however early 
referral to the Police or other agencies will be 
considered as part of the risk assessment for each 
referral. 

28. The local authority shares data across its 
own departments and between other 
enforcement agencies.  

Yes and as expected. 

The main external data sharing is via the National 
Fraud Initiative (NFI). 

29. Prevention measures and projects are 
undertaken using data analytics where 
possible.  

Yes. 

Such examples include making good use of  

 the NFI 

 Council Tax - Single persons discount review 

30. The local authority actively takes part in 
the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) and 
promptly takes action arising from it.  

Yes. 

Data is submitted every two years, with “matches” 
then investigated in accordance with the scoring of 
the match (e.g. higher scored matches reviewed first, 
lowest reviewed last and in accordance with 
resources available). 

31. There are professionally trained and 
accredited staff for counter fraud work. If 
auditors undertake counter fraud work they 
too must be trained in this area.  

As mentioned earlier, the Authority does not have a 
counter fraud team. However, the Authority has 
access to, and will make use of, Counter Fraud 
Specialists as and when the need arises. 

For example, the Counter Fraud Team of DAP are 
available to assist as and when required. 

32. The counter fraud team has adequate 
knowledge in all areas of the local authority 
or is trained in these areas.  

As above. 

33. The counter fraud team has access 
(through partnership/other local 
authorities/or funds to buy in) to specialist 
staff for:  

 Surveillance 

 Computer forensics 

 Asset recovery 

 Financial investigations. 

As above. 

34. Weaknesses revealed by instances of 
proven fraud and corruption are scrutinised 
carefully and fed back to departments to 
fraud proof systems. 

Yes. 
The Authority is committed to ongoing and continual 
improvement. Any weaknesses identified will be 
addressed wherever possible, although it should be 
noted that no system can ever be considered 100% 
free from the risk of fraud. 
 

Page 58



 

Page 59



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

1 
 

Agenda Item  

REPORT OF DAP Partnership Manager 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date 

Date: 21 January 2020 Reference:  

 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide a summary of the audit reports issued to date to 
enable members to discuss any matters they wish to raise. 
  

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The Audit & Governance Committee requested a regular summary of the audit reports issued to 
ensure there is opportunity to raise any queries on those reports.  

 
Where possible Members are encouraged to raise any significant concerns with the Service 
Improvement Officer at the time of issue of the report, however this report gives the opportunity 
for Members as a group to discuss any related matters. 

 
This committee report covers the audit reports issued to date and not previously reported.  

 
2. REPORT 

A summary of those reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A.  

 
There are 7 audits to be reported upon: 
 

 Council Tax  

 Sundry Debtors 

 GDPR Compliance 

 Tree Preservation Orders 

 Planning Enforcement 

 Section 106 Agreements 

 Creditors 
 

 

 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

Legal Implications 
None. 
 

Financial Implications 
None. 
 

Human Resources Implications 
None. 
 
Sustainability Implications 
None. 
 

 
Equality/Diversity 

Page 60

Agenda Item 10



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

2 
 

None. 
 

Risk Management 
The two key outcomes from an audit are the opinion on the audit subject, which indicates the level 
of assurance that members can take, and the agreed actions to strengthen the control framework. 
Any agreed actions are evaluated against the corporate risk matrix and the audit reports include 
those risks that are medium or high. Low risk or housekeeping matters are reported separately and 
directly to management for them to manage. Progress with implementing actions is reported to the 
Head of Paid Service (or Senior Management Team) and to the Audit & Governance committee on 
a quarterly basis. 
  
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the Audit 
Procedures Manual.  
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports 
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”    

 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
Seven reports have been issued since the meeting in July. The opinion for the audits at the time of 
publication was: 

 

Opinion Audit 

High Standard 
‘Substantial Reliance’ 

Creditors  

Good Standard 
‘No Significant Matters Arising’ 

Council Tax  
Sundry Debtors 
GDPR Compliance 
Tree Preservation Orders 
Planning Enforcement 
Section 106 Agreements 

Improvement Required 
‘Existing Procedures Need to be Improved’ 

 

Opinions range from: High Standard; Good Standard; Improvements Required; Fundamental 
Weaknesses.  

 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
Committee are asked to: 

 
Note the report issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, suggestions or proposals 
relating to the seven internal audits in this report. 

 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

 Consultations:  
 

Officer - Jenny Wallace; Steve Hearse; Staci Dorey 
Councillors - Philip Hackett 

 Contact Officer:  
 

Chris Dobbs 

 Background Papers: Audit files 
Appendix A 

Page 61



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

3 
 

 
Council Tax – Good Standard (high standard rating on 5/7 risk areas; good standard rating on 
2/7 risk areas). 

 
Introduction  
The Council Tax came into effect on 1st April 1993, having been introduced by the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992. The act requires all domestic properties be placed in one of 8 bands, referenced A 
to H, according to values given them by the Listing Officer, an appointee of The Commissioners of the 
Inland Revenue, and based on market values as at 1st April 1991. Council Tax revenue contributes to 
the cost of public services across the region, including those provided by County and District Councils, 
Police Authority, Fire and Rescue Authority and local Parish & Town Councils.  
 
Torridge District Council is responsible for the billing and collection of Council Tax on behalf of these 
services and redistributes a proportion of the revenue received to the other 'precepting' authorities. In 
order to do this the Authority is required to maintain a complete, up to date and accurate database of 
eligible dwellings. A separate database is also maintained by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA), an 
executive agency of HM Revenues & Customs (HMRC). 
 
There are currently 32,827 banded properties in the district, of which most are classed as chargeable 
dwellings. 
 
The previous audit of the Council Tax system was concluded in October 2018 at which time an audit 
opinion of 'Good' was reported. 
 

Assurance Opinion on Risks or Areas Covered 
   -   key concerns or unmitigated risks 

Level of 
Assurance 

1 Council Tax incorrectly set, leading to inaccurate billing and reputational 
damage. 

High Standard 

  

2 Late or inaccurate payment of precepts causing financial strain on 
precepting Authorities. 

High Standard 

  

3 Unreliable database information leading to inaccurate billing and a loss of 
revenue. 

Good Standard 

  

4 Ineffective recovery processes resulting in a loss of income. High Standard 

  

5 Fraud, leading to a loss of revenue. High Standard 

  

6 Inaccurate financial information resulting in a miss-statement within the 
Authorities accounts. 

High Standard 

  

7 Non-compliance with key Data Protection requirements leading to a data 
breach. 

Good Standard 

  

These areas / risks combine to provide the overall audit assurance opinion. Definitions of the assurance opinion ratings can 
be found in the Appendices. The observations and findings in relation to each of these areas has been discussed with 
management, see the "Detailed Audit Observations And Action Plan" appendix A. This appendix records the action plan 
agreed by management to enhance the internal control framework and mitigate identified risks where agreed  

 
Executive Summary  
 
Council Tax Setting 
In order to enable timely budget setting and forward planning by all precepting authorities, both the 
Council Tax base and any proposed changes to Council Tax are required to be reviewed and 
approved by members in good time.  
 
From a review of published minutes, we confirmed that the Council Tax base had been agreed by Full 

Page 62



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

4 
 

Council on 10 December 2018, with the proposed 3.15% increase being approved by Full Council on 
25 February 2019. 
 
Precepts 
A schedule was found to be in place for the payment of major precepts to Devon County Council, 
Devon & Cornwall Police, and the Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority. We found that 
payments in our sample had been processed promptly by the due dates and were for the correct 
amounts as stated in the original letters from the precepting authority. Parish precepts, which are paid 
in two instalments, had also been processed accurately and promptly for our sample case.  
 
Year End Processes 
We reviewed the year end file and found that it provided a good degree of supporting evidence that 
the necessary changes and roll over process had been completed successfully. 
 
Working papers held on file showed that the amended charges, input by the Systems Admin team, 
had been checked by a number of officers within the Council Tax team to reduce the risk of errors 
arising from manual input. 
 
The annual debit raising process was also supported by a number of standard system reports, the 
figures from which are populated into the Capita balancing spreadsheet that is used to identify any 
variances or errors that may occur during the debit raising process. No variances were noted on this 
document, which had been duly signed off by the Systems Admin team member responsible for this 
task. 
 
Annual Billing 
In order to test the annual billing process, we used an independent source of address data and 
selected a random sample of addresses from across the district. For each address, we confirmed that 
the property existed on the Council Tax database and an accurate and timely annual bill had been 
generated. Billed amounts agreed in all cases with the approved banding for the year less any 
deductions for discounts or exemptions. Bills were also sent out at least two weeks before the first 

instalment due date and copies of the bill and calculation were correctly recorded in the taxpayer’s 

account on Academy. 
 
Billing Adjustments 
We also took a sample of accounts where billing adjustments had taken place during the year. These 
may be due to changes of circumstances, the application/removal of benefits or changes to instalment 
plans. Supporting notes on the Academy system were reviewed and the bills checked for accuracy, 
with no issues identified. 
 
Changes to the Property Database 

The Valuation Office Agency (VOA) issue frequent 'schedules’ to the Authority notifying of changes to 

the rating list such as additions/deletions or amendments. We confirmed through sampling that these 
amendments had been promptly and accurately processed on the Authority's Council Tax database. 
 
VOA schedules also specify the total number of properties in each band and this enables the Authority 
to reconcile these figures to those from its own Council Tax database. We confirmed that these 
reconciliations had been completed throughout the year. The latest of these was dated 7 October 
2019, at which time there were a total of 32,829 properties recorded by the VOA, but 32,827 recorded 
by TDC, with a variance of 1 on each of band D and band A, the band D variance being historical and 
unexplained, with the band A variance also being historical but more recently discovered. 
 
Identifying the source of these variances is difficult as there is no simple way to compare both 
databases, which often use a different property reference number format. The VOA had also indicated 
previously that are unable to share their full database with the Authority. 

Page 63



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

5 
 

 
Discounts and Exemptions 
We examined a number of accounts with discounts or exemptions applied and sought to confirm that 
full records had been retained, including where necessary evidence to support the eligibility of the 
customer. 
 
Most accounts within our sample were deemed satisfactory in these terms, however supporting 
evidence, other than account notes made by the Council Tax Officers, was not always present. This 
could lead to the legitimacy of affected claims being called into question and as such it is important to 
ensure that sufficient evidence is retained in all cases. 
 
National Fraud Initiative (NFI) Data Matching 
As at 9 September 2019, there were 9,746 accounts with Single Persons Discount (SPD) applied. 
Potential cases where this discount may be incorrectly claimed, either by error or fraudulently, are 
often identified as part of the annual NFI data matching exercise, the results of which are notified to 
the Authority. We confirmed that these results had been used by the Authority to conduct their own 
investigations and contact households where any doubt remained as to the legitimacy of the discount. 
Suitable records had been retained of this work including copies of letters issued and account notes of 
actions taken. The exercise has resulted in the removal of discount from a number of accounts with an 
estimated additional income generated of almost £34,829.13. 
 
Since the previous audit in 2018-19, the Authority have also completed a joint exercise with the 
assistance of Devon Audit Partnership to review accounts with single persons discount. This has 
enabled accounts to be sorted into categories deemed to reflect the risk level and for mailshots to be 
issued where necessary requesting further information. 
 
Income Posting 
Customers have the ability to pay for their Council Tax in a variety of ways including pay-point, by 
post, online, by cash (pay-point/post office only)/cheque/credit or debit card. Transactions are initially 
recorded within the Capita cash receipting system before being posted on a daily basis to the Council 
Tax system. We reviewed a number of Capita system reports, selecting payments made by a variety 
of methods and traced these through to the individual tax payer‟s account within the Council Tax 
system. In all cases the amounts had been promptly and accurately recorded. 
 
Rejected BACS Payments 
Where direct debit payments fail, or do not complete as expected, notifications are received via 
ADDACS and ARRUD reports. We reviewed a recent report and confirmed that it had been processed 
promptly and appropriate actions had been taken, such as the issue of an adjustment notice to 
indicate a change of pay method. 
 
Suspense Items 
As at 2 October 2019, the Council Tax system suspense account, used as a holding area for 
unallocated transactions, had a zero balance. There had been a total of five transactions posted to the 
account during the year, all of which had been promptly resolved and the amount transferred out to 
the relevant taxpayer account. The suspense account is monitored daily by a member of the Systems 
Admin Team. 
 
System Reconciliation 
Large amounts of transactional data are transferred between the Authorities financial systems 
including the cash receipting system, council tax system and general ledger. The reliability and 
integrity of this information is critical to the Authority's ability to administer and report on Council Tax. 
We confirmed therefore that a reconciliation that compares control totals across these three systems 
is carried out on a regular basis by a member of the System Admin Team. This reconciliation was up 
to date and there were no unexplained variances as at the time of testing. 

Page 64



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

6 
 

 
Debt Recovery 
Recovery actions occur in accordance with a documented recovery timetable which the Council Tax 
and NDR teams share. Actions include the generation of reminders and summonses and the court 
dates for legal options to be pursued. We reviewed the current year‟s schedule and confirmed for May 
and September that the scheduled actions had occurred on time. From discussion with the Council 
Tax Team Leader we also confirmed that scheduled court dates had taken place as planned. As at 9 
September 2019, the total debt from old years stood at just under £1.6m. Whilst this is a considerable 
sum, it is helpful to view it in the context of the overall collection rates specified below, which have 
been consistently high. 
 
Under certain circumstances recovery actions can be suppressed. We reviewed a list of currently 
suppressed accounts, of which there were 52, and confirmed that the suppressions were for a fixed 
and relatively short period only. For two such accounts, we also reviewed the details within Academy 
to ensure that suitable account notes explaining the suppressions had been recorded. 
 
Collection Rate Monitoring 
Collection rate statistics are recorded in the SPAR.net system on a month by month basis, using data 
taken from system reports. We confirmed that all figures recorded in respect of the current year had 
been input correctly. The same statistics are also included in the Quarterly Business Report. We 
confirmed that this had most recently been presented to the Internal Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 17 September. As at the end of September 2019, 56.43% of the annual debit had been 
collected; as compared with 56.70% at the same point last year and against a profiled target of 
58.03%. Minor fluctuations in collection rates year on year are expected. 
 
We also looked at the in-year collection rates over several years (based on data taken from SPAR.net) 
and the chart below shows that these have remained consistently high over the period reviewed. 
 

 
 

Write Offs 
Between 1 April and 9 September 2019, the following amounts were written off: 
Debit balances - £53,965.35 
Credit balances - £11,215.84 
 
We selected a sample of debts that had been written off during the current year and reviewed the 
supporting evidence. In all instances we found that the necessary controls had been applied. These 
include separation of duties between request and authorisation of the write off, completion of a 
standard header sheet summarising the justification and authorisations for the write off, authorisations 

Page 65



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

7 
 

conducted at a level appropriate to the value of the write off and write off correctly recorded on the 
taxpayer account. 
 
Typical reasons for debt write off include insolvency; where the debtor absconds; where the amounts 
are uneconomical to pursue; and where all other recovery options have been exhausted.  
 
Credit balances may also be written off. These tend to occur where a banding reduction has taken 
place but no contact details for the historical occupiers of the property are held. 
 
Documented procedures are in place and include a scheme of delegation for the approval of amounts 
to be written off. 
 
Refunds  
We reviewed the details of a sample of recent refunds, confirming that the accounts were in credit 
prior to the refund, that separation of duties forms a part of the refund process and that details had 
been correctly recorded on the taxpayers account.  
 
System Access Controls 
Access to the Academy Council Tax system is administered by the System Admin team. Prior to being 
granted access, new user requests require the approval of a line manager and we confirmed that this 
was the case for a sample of recent additions. Where the user is from a service area other than 
revenues, additional justification is required as to why access is needed. We also confirmed that a 
user account for a recent leaver had been made dormant, preventing it from being used. 
 
We confirmed that group profiles are used, each with its own set of permissions. Users are then 
assigned to the group that has permissions relevant to their role. Groups include read only/ctax 
assess/ct all read-write. 
 
Password parameters for the Academy system are adequate, for example with regard to length and 
complexity, with users required to change their password at regular intervals. Access to the system is 
only possible from within the corporate network which has separate authentication controls, adding a 
further layer of security and reducing the risk of unauthorised access. 
 
System Admin Scheduled Tasks 
The System Admin team are responsible for overseeing a range of daily, weekly and monthly 
processes that are run through the Academy System. These include the generation of bills, 
adjustment notices, reminders, summonses, refunds and low value write offs. We viewed the 
scheduled task log on Academy to verify that processes were up to date. 
 
Issues for the Annual Governance Statement  
There are no issues arising from this review that require disclosure within the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

  

Page 66



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

8 
 

Sundry Debtors – Good Standard (good standard rating on 4/4 risk areas). 
 

Introduction  
The sundry debtors‟ system is used for raising invoices in respect of council services and for recording 
payments received against these invoices. The system sits within the Authority's integrated 
eFinancials software suite provided by Advanced. 
 
Accurate and timely billing is necessary to ensure that as much income due to the Authority is 
collected and recorded within the financial accounts. Any failure to effectively manage the debtors‟ 
system may have adverse effects on the Authority's financial position. 
 
Whilst each service area is responsible for raising invoices, the system is overseen centrally by the 
NNDR and Income Team. 
 
The current audit forms part of the 2019-20 audit plan as approved by the audit committee. 
 

Assurance Opinion on Risks or Areas Covered 
   -   key concerns or unmitigated risks 

Level of 
Assurance 

1. A failure to raise timely and accurate invoices, resulting in a loss of 
income 

Good Standard 

  

2. Non-recovery of income due, leading to increased strain on the 
Authority's budgets. 

Good Standard 

  

3. Poor accounting practices resulting in unreliable accounting 
information. 

Good Standard 

  

4. Non-compliance with the Data Protection Act leading to financial 
penalties or distress to data subjects. 

Good Standard 

  

These areas / risks combine to provide the overall audit assurance opinion. Definitions of the assurance opinion ratings can 
be found in the Appendices. The observations and findings in relation to each of these areas has been discussed with 
management, see the "Detailed Audit Observations and Action Plan" appendix A. This appendix records the action plan 
agreed by management to enhance the internal control framework and mitigate identified risks where agreed  

 
Executive Summary  
 
Invoicing 
Each service area is responsible for raising its own invoices and has nominated staff with the 
necessary system access to allow them to do so. This system works reasonably well but increases the 
risk of quality issues, particularly in service areas where invoicing is carried out infrequently and where 
officers may be less familiar with best practice.  
 
We examined 20 invoices raised by a range of services during the previous twelve months and 
considered these in respect of timeliness, accuracy, treatment of VAT, narrative content and 
accounting entries. These were found to be mostly satisfactory, however some issues were found, 
such as insufficient narrative, being raised slightly late, being coded to the wrong accounting code or 
the charges not being subject to a prudent degree of checking. 
 
These issues could lead to disputes or uncertainty regarding amounts owed, in turn leading to a 
reduction in income received. 
 
Overall however, most invoices raised had been posted to the relevant ledger accounts (including the 
revenue account, the VAT and debtor control accounts); VAT had been applied correctly and invoices 
had been raised promptly (for those in our sample where the service period had been specified). 
 

Page 67



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

9 
 

We confirmed by way of correspondence with two officers in service areas that a system is used to 
ensure both recurring and ad hoc charges are invoiced at the appropriate time. Use of a diary system 
is common practice. 
 
The eAnalyzer system was also reviewed and showed that 621 invoices had been raised by a range 
of services during period 12 of 2018/19, many of which were for periodic or recurring charges such as 
commercial rents. The charts (below) are based on data taken directly from the eAnalyzer system. 
They provide a view over time of the value and frequency of invoices raised.  
 

      
 

  
 

 
 

Page 68



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

10 
 

The above chart illustrates that the largest proportion of invoices, almost 25% of the annual total, are 
raised during March. These represent recurring and periodic charges such as rents.  
 
The value of invoices raised had increased by 3% in 2016, by 8% in 2017 and by 24% in 2018. This 
last increase was due largely to a single invoice relating to disabled facilities grant income for the year, 
which in previous years appears to have been received without the need for an invoice to be raised. 
After adjusting for this invoice, the actual increase in value for 2018 was 2%. 
 
Recovery of Overdue Debts 
Documented procedures are in place and utilized by the Income and Recovery Officer when pursuing 
outstanding debts. Standard practices include the production, review and issue of reminder letters up 
to and including those warning of court action. 
 
For aged debts of more than one year, the NDR and Income Team Leader produces and reviews a 
monthly report to ensure she maintains an awareness of longer-term debts. Data from this report is 
also reported to members within the Quarterly Business Report mentioned below.  
 
For our sample we took 10 debtor accounts with recovery actions ongoing and reviewed their current 
status on the debtor system. In some cases, the debt had been cleared either by payment or by a 
credit note having been raised. In other cases, an arrangement had been introduced and the debtor 
had made recent payments against the balance. In yet other cases, the team had exhausted all 
options up to actual litigation, with the debt remaining unpaid. 
 
Our sample confirmed that reminder letters are generated promptly by the system, which are then 
manually reviewed, and a decision taken on whether to issue, based on all available factors. We 
would suggest that an account note is added in all instances which records when a reminder is 
actually issued, as we found this to be the case in some, but not all cases. Case note generally were 
found to be a „mixed bag‟, with some cases having several recent notes recorded but two cases were 
found with insufficient or no notes provided. 
 
Litigation, and the use of a civil enforcement agency, to recover debts are available options but are 
generally considered a „last resort‟ as they involve incurring costs which are often difficult, if not 
impossible, to recover. Going forward, however, the team are considering making greater use of these 
options for selected cases.  
 
Write Offs 
The Authority‟s Financial Procedure Rules establish delegated authority for the approval of write offs. 
From data extracted directly from the financial system, we selected 10 write offs from the previous 
twelve months and sought supporting evidence. In all instances the write offs were supported by a 
copy of the standard „debtor matrix‟ form, which is used to assess the debt against predetermined 
criteria, such as the age and size of debt. This allows a score to be attributed to the debt, which then 
determines the recommended course of action to be taken.  
 
Authorisation evidence for the write offs was appropriate in most, but not all cases, with two identified 
where either no signature was shown (this was corrected immediately) or the signature was not that of 
the correct officer. 
 
The charts below show the number and value of write offs processed during the last four years. The 
high number of write offs during 2015 was due to a shift in the policy towards aged debt resulting in a 
purge of debts considered unrecoverable. It should be noted that debts can continue to be pursued in 
the event that the debtor resurfaces or is later able to make payments against the debt. 
 

Page 69



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

11 
 

     
 

   
 
Monitoring and Performance Reporting 
The Authority uses the SPAR.net system to record performance information for service areas. For 
sundry debtors, three measures are recorded, one relating to collection rates and two related to the 
value of aged debt. 
 
As at the time of testing, SPAR.net had been updated with data to the end of July 2019, which showed 
that: 
The multi-year collection rate stands at 99.6%; 
The level of debt over 1 year old stood at £244k, down from £315k as at the same period last year; 
The level of debt over 2 years old stood at £26k, up from £25k as at the same period last year. 
 
For each of the above indicators, we were able to confirm the reliability of the data by checking back to 
source documents.  
 
As well as appearing in SPAR.net, the above indicators are also incorporated into the Quarterly 
Business Report which is presented to the Internal Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The most 
recent such report, covering the period up to March 2019, was presented to the Committee in July. We 
compared the reported figures to those recorded within SPAR.net and found one error. 
 
Methodology for reporting of Collection Rates 
Although officers have looked into the possibility of improving this area, the methodology used to 
produce the collection rate figure has not changed since the previous audit, at which time it was 
reported as having several limitations. Chief among these is the fact that the figures are based on 

Page 70



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

12 
 

cumulative amounts dating back over ten years and so do not accurately reflect in year collection 
rates. Any errors introduced in the calculation spreadsheet over the years would also affect all later 
calculations, perhaps explaining the anomalous periods where the collection rate is higher than 100%. 
A further limitation of the system is that as older debt is written off this will result in historical years 
appearing to have 100% collection rates which will skew the overall figure, pushing it ever closer to 
100% as the years progress. Other authorities are known to have systems which allow in year 
collection rates to be produced, however for the time being this remains something that Torridge are 
unable to implement due to system limitations on reporting. 
 
Suspense Accounts 
Sundry debtor payments received with missing or insufficient information may end up in a suspense 
account without being correctly credited to the corresponding invoice. We confirmed that systems are 
in place and routinely operated that identify, investigate and resolve any such transactions. The 
Customer Services Supervisor is responsible for identifying any such transactions appearing within 
„Fund 39‟ or „Fund 81‟ of the cash receipting system, whilst the Accountancy Team are responsible for 
identifying and forwarding to the Income and Recovery Officer, details of any problematic transactions 
that occur when data is imported from the cash receipting system to the eFinancials system. From 
discussion with the officers involved, all processes are fully up to date. 
 
Reconciliations 
Both the Debtor system and General Ledger are fully integrated within the Advanced eFinancials suite 
so no separate interface or manual posting of data between the two modules is necessary. Invoices 
raised on the debtor system are automatically posted to a debtor control account within the General 
Ledger, as well as to individual cost centres and where applicable a VAT control account. This 
information was verified during testing of our sample of 20 invoices. 
 
The Accountancy team carry out a monthly reconciliation comparing the Debtor Control Account within 
the general ledger to the debit raised on the Debtor module. We were able to obtain evidence that this 
process has been promptly completed throughout the current financial year and the reconciliations 
had been independently reviewed and signed off. 
 
System Access and Security 
Access to the Debtor system is restricted by authentication controls. System Administrators are 
responsible for controlling the user base and line manager approval is necessary prior to any new user 
being given access. We reviewed a report showing current users and their access levels and found it 
to be reasonable. Users are assigned to a specific „group‟ which is designed to provide access 
relevant to their roles whilst enforcing a separation of duties between raising and cancelling/write off of 
debt. The user list was found to contain only current staff, indicating that leavers have been processed 
as necessary and access removed. 
 
Whilst the authentication settings for restricting access to the eFinancials suite are not particularly 
robust, e.g. by enforcing the use of strong passwords, this is compensated for by the fact that the 
application can only be accessed from within the corporate network, which itself is subject to a more 
secure level of password control. 
 
Due to imminent changes in the way corporate data backups occur, this will be looked at separately 
later in the year. Existing backup arrangements have previously been found to be effective during 
testing. 
 
Issues for the Annual Governance Statement  
There are no issues arising from this review that require disclosure within the Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 

  

Page 71



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

13 
 

GDPR Compliance – Good Standard (good standard rating on 4/7 risk areas; improvement 
required rating on 3/7 risk areas). 

 
Introduction  
The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) was adopted by the EU in April 2016 and the new 
UK Data Protection Act (DPA) 2018 writes the majority of the EU regulation into UK law, as well as 
introducing some additional requirements. The GDPR updates and harmonises data privacy within the 
EU and the DPA 2018 ensures that the regulatory standards are mirrored within the UK.  
 

The Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) has prepared guidance and checklists to assist 

organisations as they transition from meeting the requirements of the current legislation to that of the 
GDPR/Data Protection Bill.  
 

In 2016 guidance was provided by the ICO to all Data Protection Officer’s to help them prepare for the 

significant Data Protection legislative changes due in May 2018. 
 

Many of the new DPA’s fundamental principles and requirements have carried over from the existing 

Data Protection Act (DPA) whilst consolidating principles from eight to six. 
 
Organisations must now ensure effective procedures are in place and designate a Data Protection 
Officer to meet new accountability requirements. However, everyone responsible for using personal 

data within an organisation has to follow strict rules defined by the six ‘data protection principles. It is 

an organisational responsibility to ensure that staff make sure that information is: 
 

• Used fairly, lawfully and transparently 

• Used for specified, explicit purposes 

• Used in a way that is adequate, relevant and limited to only what is necessary 

• Accurate and, where necessary, kept up to date 

• Kept for no longer than is necessary 

• Handled in a way that ensures appropriate security, including protection against unlawful or 

unauthorised processing, access, loss, destruction or damage 
 
The level of financial penalty for serious breaches is significant and the new laws allow for fines of up 
to £17 million or 4% of turnover. 
 
In September 2018 DAP undertook a review of TDC's Data Protection and GDPR arrangements and 
produced a situation report. This report identified a number of areas where improvements were 
required in order to be compliant with the legislation. 

 

Assurance Opinion on Risks or Areas Covered 
   -   key concerns or unmitigated risks 

Level of 
Assurance 

1 Data Protection Act (DPA) requirements may not be met due to insufficient awareness within the 
organisation. 

Good Standard 

 

2 Incomplete or inaccurate information may reduce management‟s ability to meet DPA 
requirements. 

 An Information Asset Register (IAR) is in place. However, the IAR is not considered 
complete. 

Improvements 
required 

 

3 Failure to ensure the rights of citizens under the DPA may result in distress to the individual, 
along with reputational and financial damage to the Authority. 

 As at present there is a lack of reference to data processing agreements and data 
sharing agreements in the Information Asset Register and a lack of central filing of copies 
of the Authorities such agreements. 
 

Improvements 
Required 

 

Page 72



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

14 
 

4. If prompt actions are not taken to identify and contain potential data breaches, the impact of the 
breach may be increased, causing distress to data subjects and reputational and financial damage 
to the Authority. 

Good Standard 

 

5 If the principle of 'Privacy by Design and Default' is not embedded within day to day processes, 
future breaches of the DPA are more likely. 

 At present the Information Asset Register (IAR) does not capture if an "Initial" risk rating 
level assessment has been completed in order to determine if a Data Protection Impact 
Assessment (DPIA) needs to be completed 

Improvements 
Required 

 

6 If a suitable data retention policy is not in place and implemented, the Authority increases its 
exposure to potential data breaches and financial penalties. 

Good Standard 

 

7 The departure of the United Kingdom (UK) from the European Union may invalidate existing 
Data Processing or Data Sharing Agreements with third parties who are not based in the UK 

Good Standard 

 

 
Executive Summary  

 
In September 2018 DAP undertook a review of Torridge District Council's Data Protection (DP) and 
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) arrangements and produced a situation report. This 
report identified a number of areas where improvements were required in order to be compliant with 
the legislation. 
 
The situation report in September 2018 identified issues summarised below; 
 

 At the time the Council did not have a Data Protection Officer with the skills and knowledge that 

they will need to carry out this role.  

 At the time of the audit review the Council did not fully demonstrate the required in-house expertise 

in respect of the Data Protection Act (DPA) and Information Governance in general. 

 Progress to date has been slow, and stalled over the summer period. Suitable resources needed to 

be identified and allocated to ensure that the requirements of the DPA can be fulfilled. 

We can report that significant progress has been made with regard to the Authorities compliance with 
DPA and GDPR requirements and the particular issues above have been addressed.  
 
An appropriately skilled Officer has been appointed and the Data Protection Officer and is supported 
by a Deputy DPO and a team of “GDPR Champions” from across the Authority. Both the DPO and 
Deputy have undertaken appropriate training and continue to do so. 
 
However, there are still areas where improvements need to be made in order to be compliant with DP 
and GDP requirements. 

The detailed findings and recommendations regarding these issues and less important matters are 
described in Appendix A. Recommendations have been categorised to aid prioritisation. Definitions of 
the priority categories and the assurance opinion ratings are also given in the Appendices to this 
report.  

Management are required to agree an action plan, ideally within three weeks of receiving the draft 
internal audit report.  
Written responses should be returned to robert.mitchell@devon.gov.uk. Alternatively, a meeting to 
discuss the report and agree the action plan should be arranged with the named auditors.  

Value Added 
At present ICT are not informed routinely of employee role changes. This presents a risk of employees 
having access to information that they no longer require and should no longer have access to. A new 
HR system is being implemented, with expected go live date of April 2020 and discussions with the 
HR Manager confirmed that the new HR system will be configured to send an email to ICT when an 
employee changes role. Similar workflows will also be used to automate the notification of new 

Page 73



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

15 
 

starters and leavers that are currently sent manually (via email) by HR. The ICT Infrastructure Team 
Leader advised that emails being generated by the new HR system can be “tagged” in order that a 
ticket can be automatically created in SpiceWorks (IT Helpdesk Software). The infrastructure Team 
Leader and HR Manager agreed that this proposed process will work, and officers will liaise in order to 
ensure that this functionality be instigated as part of the new HR Systems workflows. 

 
Details of employee role changes also need to be confirmed to IT by the employee‟s line manager. 
The HR system will not hold details of access requirements; therefore, upon notification from HR of a 
change in role, IT will need to initiate contact with the manager in order to obtain details of network 
access requirements. The IT Infrastructure Manager agreed that a "Change Form" (Similar to new 
starter from already in use) can, and will, be designed for use on such occasions. 
 
Issues for the Annual Governance Statement  
There are no issues arising from this review that require disclosure within the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

 
  

Page 74



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

16 
 

Tree Preservation Orders – Good Standard (high standard on 1/5 risk areas; good standard 
rating on 3/5 risk areas; improvement required rating on 1/5 risk areas). 

 
Introduction  
A Tree Preservation Order (TPO) is a written order made by a local planning authority which makes it 
an offence to cut down, top, lop, uproot, wilfully damage or wilfully destroy a tree protected by that 
order without the Authority's permission. 
 
The Regulations which cover TPOs are the Town and County Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) 
Regulations 2012. These regulations consolidated previous legislation and guidance issued by the 
Department for Communities and Local Government. 
 
As a local planning authority, Torridge District Council has the power to issue TPO's and therefore 
must ensure that in doing so it complies with the regulations cited above. 
 
Within Torridge District Council the responsibility for TPO's sits within the Development service due to 
its existing management of Planning functions. 

 

Risks and Assurance Levels Level of 
Assurance 

1. Failure to issue TPO's may result in reputational damage to the Authority. Good Standard 

  

2. Incomplete or unreliable records may hamper efforts to enforce an order. Improvements 
Required  

3. Failure to take action against suspected illegal works to a protected tree 
may lead to the loss of the tree and encourage similar activities elsewhere in 
the district. 

Good Standard 

  

4. Lack of financial control may lead to inefficiencies or higher service costs. High Standard 

  

5. Non-compliance with Data Protection legislation leading to financial 
penalties or distress to data subjects. 

Good Standard 

  

These areas / risks combine to provide the overall audit assurance opinion. Definitions of the assurance opinion ratings can 
be found in the Appendices. The observations and findings in relation to each of these areas has been discussed with 
management, see the "Detailed Audit Observations And Action Plan" appendix A. This appendix records the action plan 
agreed by management to enhance the internal control framework and mitigate identified risks where agreed  

 
Executive Summary  

 
Resourcing Levels 
After the previous Tree Officer departed from the Authority in 2018, the decision was taken not to 
advertise the vacant post but rather to allow any day to day work on protected trees to be undertaken 
by Planning Officers. Tree protection work is largely reactive and there was deemed to be insufficient 
work to justify a permanent position. 
 
We discussed tree protection work with a number of officers within the Planning Service and found no 
issues with backlogs relating to this area. 
 
The Service acknowledges that there are still instances where specialist advice is required and where 
this occurs a process is in place for requesting and authorising the use of external consultants. 
 
Use of Contractors 
We confirmed that a procedure is in place that ensures best value is achieved where external 
consultants are used. Evidence of quotations being sought were provided for two recent cases and in 

Page 75



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

17 
 

both cases the use of the contractor had been approved by the Development Manager. 
 
The financial system shows there have been a total of ten payments to consultants so far this year, 
with a total value of £1,243. Extrapolating this would give an estimated annual cost of £2,131, a clear 
saving when compared with the cost of employing a permanent tree officer. 
 
Policy and Procedures 
A concise Tree Protection Strategy is in place and was developed by the previous Tree Officer. The 
document is published via the Authority's website. A review of the Strategy would now be beneficial as 
some information may no longer be fully accurate and reliable. 
 
For general guidance on tree protection, Planning Officers use the online Planning Practice Guidance 
provided by central government. This includes a detailed section covering tree preservation orders. 
 
There are also two internal procedures that are available to Planning Officers which cover the 'Making 
and Confirming New TPO's' and 'Commissioning Independent Consultants for Tree Works'. These 
were found to be concise and easy to follow. 
 
Training and Support 
With no specialist Tree Officer employed by the Authority, we sought to confirm that Planning Officers 
had been provided with a sufficient degree of support to enable them to undertake duties relating to 
Tree Protection. Evidence was provided that thirteen officers from across the Planning Service had 
recently attended a one day certificated course on Basic Tree Survey and Inspection. As mentioned 
above, in cases where expert advice is required the Authority will also call on external consultants to 
provide this. 
 
Legislative Changes 
Whilst changes to legislation affecting TPO's are relatively uncommon, it is important that when they 
occur, they are promptly identified and disseminated to relevant officers, for integration into working 
practices. We confirmed that regular bulletins from sources such as the Royal Town Planning Institute 
and the Planning Practice Guidance website are received by officers within the Planning Service and 
communicated to all team members. 
 
TPO Records 
The Uniform system is the primary database used for recording details of TPO's, and has a separate 
module specifically for this function. There are currently 253 entries within this module. We reviewed a 
small selection of TPO entries as well as separate entries relating to applications to carry out works to 
protected trees. Our sample covered entries from 2018 and 2019. We noted improvements in data 
quality with the most recent entry, however supporting evidence for a number of older entries was not 
always deemed to be complete.  
 
IT System Controls 
We confirmed that access to the TPO module within the Uniform system is suitably restricted. Line 
Manager authorisation is required prior to a new officer being granted access to the system and we 
were able to obtain supporting evidence for this in both of the cases within our test sample. 
 
TPO data is also captured within the corporate backup routines which are run regularly and include 
mirroring of the data to an offsite location at Caddsdown. 
 
Monitoring of TPO's 
There is no mandatory requirement that we are aware of to actively monitor existing TPO's, however 
an exercise to review historical TPO's was undertaken by the previous Tree Officer as a one-off 
exercise. Records show that this resulted in a number of revocations as well as a number of renewals 
taking place during 2015, at which time 75 new TPO's were registered. In the event that the Authority 

Page 76



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

18 
 

are notified of potential issues with trees covered by a TPO, they do investigate and take action as 
necessary.  
 
Enforcement Actions 
Illegal works carried out on a protected tree are a criminal offence and may be subject to prosecution. 
If convicted in a magistrates court a fine of up to £20,000 can be imposed. If a conviction occurs at a 
crown court, the fine can be unlimited.  
 
In deciding whether to prosecute such activities, planning enforcement officers will take into 
consideration a number of factors to arrive at a decision, including whether or not an application for 
works on the tree would be have been likely to be approved. 
 
We reviewed a recent case where such illegal works had been carried out. The case had correctly 
been flagged as a high priority and the initial site visit had been undertaken promptly. The decision 
was made not to prosecute however warning letters were sent to the developer, landowner and tree 
surgeon outlining the potential consequences of such works and explaining the decision. The letter 
makes clear that any further works to protected trees should only be carried out following submission 
and approval of a formal application. 
 
Data Protection 
The Data Protection Act 2018 introduced more stringent requirements for the lawful processing of 
personal data. This is a fairly low risk area insofar as it relates to tree protection work, however a 
certain amount of non-sensitive personal information is collected. Some aspects of compliance with 
the DPA2018 were deemed to be effective, however further improvements can be made to strengthen 
compliance further. 
 
Issues for the Annual Governance Statement  
There are no issues arising from this review that require disclosure within the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

 
  

Page 77



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

19 
 

Planning Enforcement – Good Standard (high standard on 1/4 risk areas; good standard rating 
on 1/4 risk areas; improvement required rating on 2/4 risk areas). 

 
Introduction  

 
Planning Enforcement is an important part of the planning process and whilst it is not always a 
criminal offence to carry out development without planning permission, it may still constitute a 
contravention of planning laws which the Authority then has the power to enforce. Whether 
Enforcement Action is taken depends on whether the Authority considers the unapproved work to be 
unacceptable, harmful or is not in the public interest. 
 
Planning Enforcement is a complex area; the Town and Country Planning Act seeks to strike a 
balance between the freedom of owners to use or alter their property, whilst at the same time 
safeguarding the amenities of their neighbours, conserving historic buildings and protecting the natural 
environment. 
 
The two Planning Enforcement Officers (PEO‟s) are based at Riverside and work within larger 
Development Management teams, with each team covering broadly half the district in an East/West 
split. The work of both teams is overseen by the Development Manager. 
 
The PEO‟s  carry out their duties in accordance with the recently revised Planning Enforcement 
Procedures which set out the Authority's general discretionary powers with regard to Planning 
Enforcement, the priorities for responses to complaints and timescales for responding.  
 
This audit is being conducted as part of the 2019-20 Internal Audit Plan, as agreed with management 
and approved by the Audit Committee. 
 
The last audit of this area was concluded in November 2016, at which time an assurance level of 
Marginal/Satisfactory was reported. 
 

Assurance Opinion on Risks or Areas Covered 
   -   key concerns or unmitigated risks 

Level of 
Assurance 

1 Insufficient resourcing may prevent the timely investigation and 
enforcement of suspected breaches. 

Good Standard 

  

2 Reports of planning breaches may not be dealt with effectively, leading to 
reputational damage. 

Improvements 
Required 

  

3 Poor financial controls may lead to errors within the Statement of Accounts. High Standard 

  

4 Non compliance with the Data Protection Act 2018, leading to financial 
penalties or distress to data subjects. 

Improvements 
Required 

  
These areas / risks combine to provide the overall audit assurance opinion. Definitions of the assurance opinion ratings can 
be found in the Appendices. The observations and findings in relation to each of these areas has been discussed with 
management, see the "Detailed Audit Observations And Action Plan" appendix A. This appendix records the action plan 
agreed by management to enhance the internal control framework and mitigate identified risks where agreed  

 
Executive Summary  
 
Resourcing and Capacity 
Whilst Planning Enforcement is to a large degree a discretionary undertaking, paragraph 58 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) nonetheless states that effective enforcement is 
important to maintain public confidence in the planning system. A proportionate approach to 
undertaking such activities is thus recommended by the NPPF. 

Page 78



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

20 
 

Torridge for their part have two full time permanent Planning Enforcement Officers (PEO) who work 
closely together but cover difference parts of the district. Both officers are relatively new to the role but 
bring with them a good range of skills from their previous roles in planning support and the 
metropolitan police service. 
 
The officers are provided with a good degree of support to help them develop in their roles, including 
an internal appraisal process and (for one officer currently) enrolment on a Certificated Course in 
Planning Enforcement. 
 
The recently appointed Development Manager also has a background in enforcement and so is 
available to provide advice and guidance to the officers if necessary. This currently includes fortnightly 
meetings with the enforcement officers to discuss ongoing casework, with the focus being on higher 
risk or complex cases. This also ensures that the Development Manager can maintain a good degree 
of awareness of current cases. 
 
Caseloads are relatively high, at over 100 per officer, however these consist of a mixture of old and 
new cases. Due to the nature of the work, some cases can take more than a year to close out. 
 
We reviewed the IDOX system to determine the typical numbers of cases registered during any one 
year. The graph below shows the results and indicates that there are usually between two hundred 
and two hundred and fifty new cases registered annually.  
 

 
 

Accounting Controls 
Transactions associated with Planning Enforcement are recorded against cost centre 512 within the 
eFinancials system. 
Budgets are monitored throughout the year by both the Accountancy team and the Planning and 
Economy Manager and standard controls used for authorising expenditure are in place. 
 
The chart below shows the net cost associated with the Planning Enforcement Team, including central 
service recharges which cover the cost of support functions such as IT and HR. Costs increased by 
11% in 2017 and 6% in 2018. 
 
 

Page 79



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

21 
 

 
 

Operational Framework 
With their backgrounds in planning support and the metropolitan police service, the PEO's were able 
to demonstrate a good awareness of the key legislation pertaining to the role. These include The 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990, Statutory Instrument 2015/596 – General Permitted 

Development Order and the Police and Criminal Evidence Act.  
 
Further guidance was found to be available from the gov.uk website entitled Ensuring Effective 
Enforcement and the PEO's indicated they were also aware of any use this guidance in their day to 
day work.  
 
Internally, the new Development Manager has taken the opportunity to overhaul the Local 
Enforcement Plan, which has now been published on the Authority website under the new name 
Guidance on Planning Enforcement Procedures (GPEP).  
 
Enforcement Register 
A register of Planning Enforcement notices is required under section 188 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. The Authority maintains a large bound ledger which continues to be the primary 
register. We confirmed that the register contains the most recent notices and is available for public 
inspection during all reasonable hours. The Authority have also made a start at producing an 
electronic version of the register, which so far contains details of notices issued from 2008 onwards 
and has been made available via the website. We carried out some cross checks between the two 
registers and the relevant case record within the Uniform system, which identified a number of data 
quality issues. 
 
Published Information 
We reviewed the Authority's website and identified a page containing up to date and relevant 
information relating to the Planning Enforcement Team. This includes a description of scenarios 
considered to constitute a breach along with those scenario's that would constitute a criminal offence. 
Information on how to report a breach is included, as is the recently updated guidance document 
(GPEP). 
 
Performance Monitoring 
There are currently no performance statistics available which the team can use to gauge their 
effectiveness. Work is however well underway in this area and includes the establishment of four 
possible indicators in the recently updated GPEP. The plan is to start producing statistics for cases 
registered from October 2019 onwards, and the report needed to extract the relevant data from the 
Uniform system is currently being developed. Initially the statistics will only be able to gauge 
performance over a short period, but, as time progresses, the amount of data available for analysis will 
increase, as will the usefulness of the statistics produced. 

Page 80



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

22 
 

Data Quality 
The primary system used by the PEO's for recording case information is Uniform. We reviewed a 
number of case records on the system from the previous twelve months and found them to variable in 
terms of the quality of information recorded. Problems encountered with the case records across this 
period included missing or incomplete data fields, such as that used to record the acknowledgement 
date or priority level. Missing attachments, or attachments that were only added after some months, 
were also noted. 
 
Data Protection 
The Planning Enforcement Team have a good level of understanding with regard to the need for 
privacy and data protection as it relates to personal data. Some areas of non-compliance with the 
Data Protection Act were however noted which will need to be addressed going forward. This includes 
generating an entry within the Information Asset Register, the inclusion of suitable privacy notices on 
the website and any forms used to collect personal data, and the establishing and implementation of 
defined retention periods for personal data. 
 
Maintaining Probity 

From discussion, we determined that PEO’s are aware of the potential for conflicts of interest to arise 

in the course of their duties and that they should not handle cases where the subject is known 
personally to them. To strengthen this area further and reduce the risk of allegations against staff, we 
would suggest officers involved in making or recommending enforcement decisions should sign some 
form of standard declaration form which could then be retained on the officers‟ personnel file. Such 
declarations are already commonly used in other service areas such as revenues and benefits. 
 
Criminal Prosecutions 
Cases where a criminal prosecution is sought are relatively rare, however where this is necessary the 
PEO's have the full support of the Authority's Legal Team, who process these cases using their in-
house team of lawyers. 
 
Due to the possibility of cases reaching the prosecution stage, it is important for PEO's to have an 
awareness of the requirements of the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE), especially 
where this relates to evidential integrity. Although there is no such evidence currently being held, we 
confirmed through discussion that the recently appointed PEO has, due to his background in policing, 
received current training in PACE, whilst the second PEO is due to receive training on this topic as 
part of his current training course mentioned above. 
 
Issues for the Annual Governance Statement  
There are no issues arising from this review that require inclusion within the Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 
 
 

  

Page 81



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

23 
 

 
Section 106 Agreements – Good Standard (high standard on 1/5 risk areas; good standard 
rating on 3/5 risk areas; improvement required rating on 1/5 risk areas). 

 
Introduction  
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 allows a Local Planning Authority to enter 
into a legally binding agreement or planning obligation with a landowner in association with the 
granting of planning permission. The obligation is termed a Section 106 (S106) Agreement. 
 
The agreements are a way to help ensure that proposed developments are acceptable in planning 
terms and are increasingly used to support the provision of services and infrastructure, such as 
highways, recreational facilities, education, health and affordable housing. 
 
When the Council receives a planning application, the Planning team will determine, in consultation 
with other stakeholders such as Housing and Highways, whether a planning obligation may be 
relevant to that application. In such cases an instruction will be passed to the Legal Service to prepare 
the S106 Agreement. The Legal Service will then take part in the planning negotiations. 
 
Once an agreement is in place and the development is under way, the Planning Service is responsible 
for monitoring progress, ensuring that trigger points are identified, monies collected, and the terms of 
the Agreement are met. This includes ensuring that S106 money received is used exclusively for the 
purposes set out within the Agreement. 
 
This audit is being conducted as part of the 2019-20 Internal Audit Plan, as agreed with management 
and approved by the Audit Committee. 
 
The last audit of this area was concluded in March 2015, at which time an assurance level of 
Marginal/Satisfactory was reported. 

 

Assurance Opinion on Risks or Areas Covered 
   -   key concerns or unmitigated risks 

Level of 
Assurance 

1 S106 Agreements may not be implemented for all relevant developments, 
resulting in lost opportunities for the affected communities. 

Good Standard 

  

2 S106 Agreements may not be monitored effectively, resulting in monies 
being collected late or not at all. 

Improvements 
Required  

3 S106 monies may be used for purposes other than those agreed upon, 
resulting in reputational damage and loss to the affected communities. 

High Standard 

  

4 Records may be lost, or unauthorised amendments made, preventing the 
effective administration of S106 monies. 

Good Standard 

  

5 Non-compliance with Data Protection legislation leading to financial 
penalties or distress to data subjects. 

Good Standard 

  

These areas / risks combine to provide the overall audit assurance opinion. Definitions of the assurance opinion ratings can 
be found in the Appendices. The observations and findings in relation to each of these areas has been discussed with 
management, see the "Detailed Audit Observations and Action Plan" appendix A. This appendix records the action plan 
agreed by management to enhance the internal control framework and mitigate identified risks where agreed  

 
Executive Summary  

 
Overview 
Overall, we have noted some improvement since the previous audit to the administration and 
monitoring of S106 Agreements, however some processes would benefit from further development, 

Page 82



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

24 
 

which remains ongoing. 
 
The amount of S106 monies held is relatively modest, standing at £303,258. This is made up of 
£117,339 in capital funds and the balance as revenue costs towards future maintenance of, for 
instance, open spaces provided during development. 
 
The level of development projects underway is also understood to be relatively low at the current time. 
 
Policies and Procedures 
For general or higher-level guidance, officers in all relevant service areas have access to online web-
based resources including the source legislation, National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and 
guidance on Planning Obligations. 
For local procedures, we noted that the S106 protocol, developed by the former Planning Manager, is 
now deemed to be unreliable and out of date due to subsequent changes in the process. As a 
replacement, the Planning Performance Team Leader has recently developed two brief but useful new 
procedures to assist officers with key aspects of S106 administration.  
 
Resourcing 
Several teams within the Authority are involved in S106 development, monitoring and utilization. For 
the most part we found these service areas to be sufficiently resourced and therefore we did not 
encounter any backlogs with day to day processes that were attributable to a lack of resources. S106 
work was found to be carried out by suitably experienced officers with a good level of understanding of 
the subject area. Some aspects of the work, such as the drafting of the S106 agreements themselves, 
are now handled by Ashfords, a reputable national firm of solicitors. 
 
Barriers to Development 
Developers often face difficulties that prevent a development from moving forward from the outline 
stage to the point where on-site work commences. Developers may also find that their planned costs 
for a development increase due to unexpected circumstances, leading them to seek a variation to the 
original S106 agreement which inevitably results in the easing of their obligations. Neither of these 
scenarios is good for the district but they are both fairly common occurrences.  
One possible option to help alleviate these obstacles would be the introduction of a new role to 
identify, assess and remove these barriers to development, thereby helping to stimulate growth and 
increase the potential to realize benefits from S106 agreements. From discussion with officers during 
the audit, we understand such a role has been used in other authorities and that external funding may 
be available to subsidise the role. As such this may be something the Authority wishes to investigate 
further. 
 
Deeds and Legal Documents 
Once the covenants of a S106 agreement have been agreed by all parties the document is signed as 
a deed and the official seal is applied. From our sample of agreements, we confirmed that all had 
been correctly recorded within the deed register maintained by the Legal Team. One of the original 
deeds however, dating back to 2016, could not found within the strong room, indicating that 
improvements to the filing and or signing in/out procedures would be beneficial.  
 
The agreements themselves were found to be well presented and contained clear reference to key 
topics such as the parties involved; obligations applicable to each party; trigger points at which 
obligations must be carried out and the value or size of any obligation due. Clearly establishing such 
basic information is critical to avoiding or resolving any disputes that may later arise. 
 
Section 106 Records 
We reviewed key record keeping systems used by the various service areas to record and monitor 
S106 agreements. 
 

Page 83



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

25 
 

For the Planning Service, the IDOX - Uniform database is the main record. Efforts have recently been 
made to ensure that all live S106 agreements are recorded and for our sample we found that to be the 
case, with a total of 160 separate cases recorded. There are still a number of further developments 
and decisions that need to be made regarding the utilization of the database, but the service is 
heading in the right direction with their current efforts. 
 
A key record accessed by several services including Legal, Planning, Accountancy and Property, is 
the 'S106 Records' spreadsheet. We found that the record is being updated much more promptly than 
during the previous audit, especially with regard to the sections maintained by the Legal Team. 
 
Monitoring of Trigger Points 
Prompt identification of trigger points being reached is essential and a prerequisite to invoicing the 
developer for any sums due under the agreement. The improved use of the IDOX - Uniform system to 
record S106 particulars includes the recording of individual obligations and can therefore be used as a 
reference and monitoring tool for officers involved in the monitoring of trigger points, especially when 
suitable reports have been developed and further decisions made on the level of information to be 
recorded. 
 
The officer responsible for identifying trigger points indicated that she liaises regularly with other team 
such as Planning Policy and Building Control in order to obtain updated information on planned 
developments. Evidence was provided to support this, however it appeared to be several months old, 
suggesting that further improvement to the timeliness of information sharing was possible. 
 
Due to the size of the District and the time it takes to traverse, the ability for the monitoring officer to 
personally visit sites on a regular basis to determine the status of developments is not feasible, 
although site visits are carried out on an ad hoc basis. 
 
Usage of S106 Monies 
S106 Agreements often specify time limits for use of funds received from developers. There is, 
therefore, a risk that if firm plans are not in place to utilise available funds, they may need to be 
returned. We were pleased to note that the large sum that was being held in respect of affordable 
housing as at the time of the previous audit has now been fully utilized, with the balance of £403,500 
being paid to a Housing Association in 2017 towards the cost of affordable housing in Westward Ho! 
 
Conversely, we also noted that a sum of over £10k was ordered by the courts to be repaid in April of 
2017 as a result of its not being utilized. There have however been no further instances and we did not 
identify any currently held sums that would be at risk due to a failure to utilize within agreed 
timescales. 
 
As S106 monies can only be used for those purposes stipulated within the agreements, it is important 
to ensure that clear records of these purposes are maintained and that these purposes are clearly 
communicated to service areas who utilise the funds. As the IDOX - Uniform system is further 
developed it will become more useful in this regard, and it already records all live obligations relevant 
to the Authority. We discussed the uses of S106 monies with the Property Team, who confirmed that 
they liaise with, for instance, the IDOX - Uniform monitoring officer to verify how S106 funds can be 
used. Evidence of such communications was provided. The Property Team also have access to the 
master spreadsheet record which shows amounts held for each agreement. 
 
We note that minutes from the recently formed Property and Major Projects Working Group, made up 
of senior officers and members, includes discussion of some S106 agreements and therefore also 
provides a degree of oversite on how the funds are used. 
 
Invoicing for S106 Monies Due 
The process appeared to be fairly straightforward with no issues identified. Once a relevant trigger 

Page 84



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

26 
 

point has been reached, the monitoring officer notifies the Planning Performance Team Leader who 
then liaises with the Accountancy Team to ensure an appropriate accounting code is used for the 
income. An invoice is then raised within the eFinancials system and issued. We reviewed a report of 
all invoices appearing on code 999 0552 since April 2017 and found all had been allocated to a job 
code relating to a specific S106 agreement and the correct VAT classification of non-business 
supplies had been used. 
 
Accounting Controls 
Accounting controls were found to be effectively implemented to help ensure that S106 funds are 
recorded and categorised appropriately. The balance sheet cost centre 999 is used with a number of 
account and job codes that designate the type of funds and the specific S106 agreement to which they 
relate. 
 
Any movement on these accounts is identified regularly and a reconciliation carried out between the 
general ledger codes and the S106 Records spreadsheet. We confirmed that such reconciliations had 
been carried out during the current year.  
 
Data Protection 
We considered a number of key controls relating to Data Protection. These included staff training and 
awareness, processes for documenting how personal data is used, the use of privacy notices, how 
access to persona data is restricted and how data retention policies are applied. In most areas no 
issues were identified however we did note that records within the IDOX - Uniform and IDOX - DMS 
systems are currently held indefinitely, with no easy way of bulk deleting expired personal data other 
than by processing one record at a time. Privacy notices had not all been updated since the 
introduction of the Data Protection Act 2018. 
 
Issues for the Annual Governance Statement  
There are no issues arising from the current review that require disclosure within the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

  

Page 85



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

27 
 

Creditors – High Standard (high standard on 4/5 risk areas; good standard rating on 1/5 risk 
areas). 

 
Introduction  
The Creditors System forms part of the e-Financials suite and is used by the Authority to pay its 
suppliers and other creditors. It comprises a database of those people and organisations that are 
owed money by the Authority and includes details of what has been and is due to be paid. It links to 
the eProcurement system whereby electronic orders raised by officers are recorded.  
 
The two systems (e-Financials and e-Procurement) operate to record orders and payments and link to 
the General Ledger through the accounts coding structure; they record and classify the commitments 
and payments of the Council.     
 
The Creditors System is administered by the Exchequer team whose main objectives are to ensure 
prompt and accurate payments are made. 
 
The previous audit of this area was concluded in December 2018, at which time an assurance level of 
Good was given. The current audit forms part of the 2019-20 audit plan as approved by the audit 
committee. 

 

Assurance Opinion on Risks or Areas Covered 
   -   key concerns or unmitigated risks 

Level of 
Assurance 

1 Failure to raise purchase orders may result in unanticipated budget 
overspends. 

High Standard 

 

2 Poor accounting controls may lead to expenditure being misclassified 
and or errors in the statement of accounts. 

High Standard 

 

3 Creditors may be paid late, resulting in financial hardship or cash flow 
problems. 

High Standard 

 

4 Fraud occurring inside or outside the Authority, leading to financial 
loss. 

Good Standard 

 

5 Non-compliance with the Data Protection Act 2018, resulting in distress 
to service users or financial penalties being incurred. 

High Standard 

 

These areas / risks combine to provide the overall audit assurance opinion. Definitions of the assurance opinion 
ratings can be found in the Appendices. The observations and findings in relation to each of these areas has been 
discussed with management, see the "Detailed Audit Observations And Action Plan" appendix A. This appendix 
records the action plan agreed by management to enhance the internal control framework and mitigate identified risks 
where agreed 

 
Executive Summary  

 
Overall we have concluded that, the control framework designed to ensure that the process from 
procurement of goods and services to payment, operates effectively. 
 
Our review found that purchase orders are raised and authorised by an appropriate budget holder, in a 
timely manner. The control arrangements for re-authorising any amendments to purchase orders 
ensure that budget holders are aware of (and required to) approve any increase in the value of an 
order, which reduces the risk of unanticipated budget overspends.  
 
The reconciliation of the Creditors Control Account is carried out on a monthly basis, and 
independently checked which gives assurance on accuracy of accounting entries.   
 
Performance monitoring of invoices paid within terns is carried out promptly after each accounting 
month end period, and entered onto the SPAR performance management system.  Performance 
against these KPI‟s is reported to management and members on a regular basis.  Processes in place 

Page 86



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

28 
 

to mitigate the risk of late payments operate well, with the Exchequer Team playing a proactive role to 
ensure payments are made within supplier terms.  This is reflected in the performance figures for the 
first 7 months of the financial year, which have remained just above the target of 99%. 
 
Procedures for processing invoices for payment have a number of effective controls.  These include 
system access controls which ensure that users only have a level of access that is appropriate to their 
job role, and a clear understanding of each process within the Exchequer team.  Separation of duties 
and independent checking are embedded into the processes, and our review found that these operate 
effectively to reduce the risk of fraudulent transactions being processed, both internally and externally. 
 
Purchasing card processes for new card holder applications are well controlled, with card holders 
restricted to certain categories of expenditure and also limited to the value they can spend each 
month.  Purchasing card spend is closely monitored to ensure the validity of transactions. 
Transaction logs are submitted to the Exchequer team each month; these must have all receipts 
attached with the log having been authorised. Our review found that two transaction logs from 
Westcombe Depot (in respect of vehicle fuel) had not been authorised for processing prior to the 
transactions being posted to the general ledger.  Whilst all the transactions had been independently 
checked and validated, this represents a significant amount of expenditure that has not been approved 
in line with the expected procedure. 
.  
In regard to storage of personal information and compliance with DPA2018, all hard copies of 
documentation containing personal information are securely stored with access restricted to 
appropriate staff.  Privacy notices are published on the supplier forms and any paper copies are 
destroyed once information has been entered onto the system. 
 
Through discussion with the Exchequer team during our review of their processes, and through 
enquiry with the Finance Manager, we understand that mandatory training has been provided for 
GDPR and on-line training has also been undertaken with regard to data protection. This gives a good 
level of assurance that staff are aware of their responsibilities and mitigate the risk of on-compliance 
with the DPA2018. 
 
Overall, based on the results of our review, a high level of assurance can be given that the creditors 
system operates effectively. 
 
Issues for the Annual Governance Statement  
There are no issues arising from this review that require disclosure within the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

 
 

Page 87



 
  

Agenda Item  

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Progress with Agreed Actions 

Date: 21st January 2020 Reference:  

 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide an update on progress with implementing agreed actions. 
  

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The Audit & Governance Committee requested a regular report on progress with agreed 
actions. This report is set out at appendix A.  
 

 
2. REPORT 

A summary of the position as at the 21st January is shown at Appendix A.  
 
Since the Audit & Governance Committee in July 2019 there has been 7 internal audit 
reports issued containing 46 agreed new audit actions. In the same period there have 
been 32 actions completed by management.  
 
There were 2 internal audit actions due for completion by the 21st January which were not 
completed on time. Both are historical audit actions:  

 One is now being progressed via DCC 

 One is reliant on a 3rd party  
 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
None 
 
Financial Implications 
None 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None 
 
Sustainability Implications 
None 
 
Equality/Diversity 
None 
 
Risk Management 
The two key outcomes from an audit are the opinion on the audit subject, which indicates the 
level of assurance that members can take, and the agreed actions to strengthen the control 
framework where testing has shown risks are not being adequately managed. The agreed 
actions are evaluated using the corporate risk matrix and the audit reports include those 
risks that are medium or high. Low risk or housekeeping matters are reported separately and 
directly to management for them to manage. The Internal Audit team report on progress in 
implementing the actions agreed with management to better control high and medium risks.  

Page 88

Agenda Item 11



 
  

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the 
Audit Procedures Manual.  
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Consultations date - Councillor Philip Hackett – January 2020. 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
Since the A&G meeting in October 2019, 46 new actions have been identified in internal 
audit reports and 32 actions have been completed by management. 
 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Committee are asked to: 
 

 Note the progress with actions in this Quarter 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations:  

 
Jenny Wallace 
Steve Hearse 
Staci Dorey 
Councillor Philip Hackett 
Other officers as required 
 

 Contact Officer:  
 

Chris Dobbs 

 Background Papers: 
 

Audit files 

 
 

Page 89



 

 
  

 

Appendix A - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 21st January 2020 

 
 

 

P
age 90



 

 
  

 

 

Appendix A - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 21st January 2020 
 

 
 

Outstanding Issues 
 

 
 

Service Responsible 
Officer 

Status Audit Action 
Summary 

Complete 
By 

Comment 

Waste 
Richard 
Haste 

Milestone 
Missed 

Procurement 
Audit 

2016/17 

Formal 
Contracts 

Was 
30/09/2016 

Now 
30/09/2017 

We acknowledge that there is no formal agreement in place, Peake GB are a specialist provider 
who we have used for many years, and we hold risk assessments to ensure that both parties 
are aware of and can manage risk associated with the service. 
 
We have recently reviewed clinical waste collections which should result in a significant 
reduction in the costs payable to the contractor. If the ongoing costs associated with the service 
warrant it (are expected to be over £30k per year), we will carry out a formal tendering exercise 
and draw up a formal agreement between the partner Authorities and the contractor. This was 
to have been a joint procurement exercise by Torridge, North Devon and Mid Devon but North 
Devon and Mid Devon have shelved this. The current arrangement with Peake (although 
without a contract) allows for the subsidy of their disposal charge by the collection costs - if we 
go to the market then in any new arrangement will cost more for Torridge as the disposal 
element will have to be put into the existing county contract which is considerably lower. Other 
Councils do not want to change existing arrangements and incur more costs 
 

New Disposal Tender is being progressed by DCC. 
       

Safeguarding Simon Toon 
Milestone 
Missed 

Safeguarding 
Audit 

2016/17 

Information 
Sharing 

Was 
31/03/2018 

Now 
30/09/2019 

A protocol should be developed so that all agencies have a clear understanding of information 
sharing requirements. This is being led by the DSCB (Devon Children’s Safeguarding Board). 
Liaison is ongoing.   
 
Liaison has been ongoing for a number of years. 

 
There is a meeting of the Board on 30 Oct but no guarantee that we will be any further 
forward. 
 

Completion of this action remains outside of Simon Toon's control. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

P
age 91

http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=992
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=992
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1031
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1031


 WHISTLEBLOWING – AN OFFICER GUIDE 

 
WHISTLEBLOWING – AN OFFICER GUIDE 

 

WHISTLEBLOWING – AN OFFICER GUIDE 

  

Whistleblowing  
An Officer Guide 

 

 

What is Whistleblowing? 
Whistleblowing is reporting something that you 
are aware of that you think or know is wrong 
that affects the Council. You must report any  
concerns you have. 
 

This is a responsibility we all have whether a 
casual employee cleaning the offices, working 
at a swimming pool in Holsworthy or employed 
as the Finance Manager.  
 
What sort of things might be reported? 
Fraud – this means someone is deliberately 
misleading the Council in order to gain an 
advantage. For example someone with the 
power to authorise invoices might attempt to 
submit a false invoice for goods that the 
Council hasn’t received.  
 

Bribery – this means any act involved in 
offering or receiving a bribe or other 
inducement to influence a decision. For 
example trying to bribe a Councillor in order to 
obtain planning permission. 
 

Collusion - this means two or more people 
have privately arranged that one of them will 
gain an improper advantage. For example 3 
contractors could come to an agreement that 
2 of them will submit inflated prices so the 
third contractor is more likely to win work from 
the Council. 
 

 
Probity – this is about making sure that the 
right things happen, so that we protect 
honesty, truth, openness and trust. Anything 
that isn’t in line with probity should be 
reported. 
 

Each year Fraud within the public sector 
costs the taxpayer between £2.2 and £4 
billion  pounds. Detected cases of fraud and 
corruption are on the increase. All public 
sector organisations are likely to be affected 
in some way by fraudulent or corrupt activity. 
 

The Council’s Policy 
It is Council policy that all employees and 
people employed on Council contracts must 
report suspected or potential irregularities 
immediately. This could be to your Manager 
or to any of the people listed on the rear of 
this leaflet. The Council has a zero 
tolerance policy on irregularity. It will not 
tolerate any fraud or corruption.  
   

First Steps 
We realise you may want to talk over your 
concerns first, so in the first instance you can 
talk to any manager, HR, Internal Audit, a 
Union representative, or Elected Member. 
 

It is very important that you do not 
investigate the issue yourself; you could 
damage any evidence that may then prevent 
us (or the Police) from taking action against 
the perpetrator. Evidence must be protected 
– the Police have reported nationally that 
 

 
they cannot prosecute over half of fraud and 
corruption cases because of inappropriate 
action taken before the case is referred to 
them. The action that you take when you 
first suspect fraudulent activity may be 
crucial. 

 
Acting Upon Your Suspicions 

– the Do’s and Don’ts 
If you suspect a fraud or irregularity within 
the workplace, there are a few simple 
guidelines that should be followed:  
 

The 3 Do’s 
1) Do make an immediate note of your 
concerns 
Note all relevant details, such as what was 
said in telephone or other conversations, the 
date, time and names of any parties 
involved. It may help to keep a diary if initially 
you are not certain, but also follow steps 2 
and 3.  
 
2) Do convey your suspicions to someone 
with appropriate authority and 
experience, preferably in writing.  
The Council would prefer you not to do this 
anonymously so that if necessary further 
information can be obtained. However 
anonymous complaints will be investigated.  
  
If you prefer you may ask a friend or a Trade 
Union representative to raise the matter on 
your behalf. Even if you raise the matter 
yourself, a Union representative, a 

 

 

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 12



 WHISTLEBLOWING – AN OFFICER GUIDE 

 
WHISTLEBLOWING – AN OFFICER GUIDE 

 

WHISTLEBLOWING – AN OFFICER GUIDE 

 

Need Further Advice? 
 

If you need further advice you can 
contact the following people: 

 
Steve Hearse, Statutory Finance Officer 

on 01237 428967 
 

Staci Dorey, Senior Solicitor 
on 01237 428763 

 
Sarah Ayres, HR Manager 

on 01237 428791 
 

Chris Dobbs, Governance Team  
on 01237 428789 

 
Robert Hutchins, Internal Audit 

(Devon Audit Partnership) 
on 01392 383000 

 
Grant Thornton, External Audit 

on 0117 305 7600  

 
friend or colleague may accompany you to 
any meeting on the issue. It is the 
responsibility of the person to whom you 
report your suspicion to ensure it is 
investigated. 

 
3) Do deal with the matter promptly.  

Any delay may cause the Council to suffer 
further loss. 

 

Where possible you will be kept informed 
of the progress of the investigation and its 
outcome. Depending upon the findings of 
the internal investigation, the matter could 
be referred to the external auditors Grant 
Thornton or the Police for attention. 

 
The 7 Don’ts 

 

1) Don’t do nothing 
 
2) Don’t be afraid of raising your   

   concerns.  
   The Council will treat any matter you 
   raise sensitively and confidentially and  
   will not tolerate harassment or    
   victimisation.  

 
3) Don’t approach or accuse any  

   individuals directly. 
 
4) Don’t try to investigate the matter   

   yourself.  
 

5) Don’t allow irregularities to fester. 
 

 

6) Don’t convey your suspicions to 
anyone other than those with the 
proper authority. 

 Public disclosure of a suspicion could 
ruin hard won reputations and destroy 
public confidence. However, you may 
raise the matter with our external auditors 
(Grant Thornton) or the Police if your 
suspicions relate to ALL those officers 
with whom you would be expected to 
raise the matter internally, or if we have 
failed to investigate your concern without 
explaining why an investigation is not 
appropriate. Please do consider 
discussing the issue with the Head of 
Paid Service before reporting it 
externally. 

 
7) Don’t act maliciously or seek only to 

cause annoyance.  
 Always act in good faith 

 

Summary 
 

 Note all relevant details, but do not 
attempt to investigate the matter 
further yourself. 

 

 Report all suspicions promptly to 
the appropriate person. 

 

 If in doubt, report your suspicions 
anyway. 

 
 
 
 

 
Or you can talk to: 

 
Any Manager 

or  
Any Trade Union Representative 

or 
Any Elected Member  

 
 

 
January 2020 

P
age 93



 

 
ANTI FRAUD – A MANAGER’S GUIDE ANTI FRAUD – A MANAGER’S GUIDE ANTI FRAUD – A MANAGER’S GUIDE 

 
 

Anti-Fraud, Corruption & 
Bribery A Guide for Managers 

 
 

How should YOU react to suspected FRAUD? 
 

 

Why you should read this Guide 
 

Fraud within the public sector is estimated to cost 
the taxpayer between £2.2 to £4 billion each year.  
 

Detected cases of fraud and corruption are on the 
increase. All public sector organisations are likely to 
be affected in some way by fraudulent or corrupt 
activity. In addition, the Bribery Act was introduced 
from June 2011, and this applies equally to local 
authorities as well as the private sector. 
 

As a manager, it is possible that you may encounter 
fraud, corruption or bribery first hand.  
 

The Police have in the past reported nationally that 
they cannot prosecute over half of fraud and 
corruption cases because of inappropriate action 
taken before the case is referred to them.  
 

The Council is committed to tackling the issue and 
we all have a responsibility to ensure any reported 
malpractice is dealt with properly. If you suspect or 
become aware of fraudulent activity, an irregularity 
or a serious failure of work standards, the action 
you take when you first identify, or are made aware 
of the matter, may be crucial in determining the 
success of any subsequent investigation. 
 

It is your responsibility to ensure that suspicions 
reported to you are investigated 
 

 
 
 

 

The Council’s Response to  
Fraud and Corruption 

 

Under the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules all 
employees have an obligation to report suspected 
or potential irregularities. Paragraph 4.3.12 of the 
Rules states: 
 

“In the case of any suggested or potential 
irregularity in the exercise of the Council’s 
functions the officer concerned shall 
immediately notify” one of the specified 
contacts who will take the necessary steps by 
way of investigation and report.” 

 

All fraud or bribery must be reported at the earliest 
opportunity and all frauds or suspected irregularities 
will be investigated. 

 

Acting Upon Your Suspicions 
– the Do’s and Don’ts 

 

One of the specified contacts will give all necessary 
advice. There are, however, some common sense 
rules that can be applied in all cases where fraud, 
corruption or bribery is suspected within the 
workplace: 
 

The 5 Do’s 
 

1 Be responsive to officer’s concerns.  
You need to encourage your officers to voice any 
reasonably held suspicion as part of developing 
an effective anti-fraud culture. When a concern is 
raised you should acknowledge it and treat it 
seriously, confidentially and sensitively.  
 

The Council will take action to investigate ALL 
reasonable complaints. If the Council is unable to 
do this then support of External Auditors or the 
Police may be considered. 
 

 
 

 
Officers may ask their Trade Union 
representative to either raise an issue for them or  
to attend any meetings with them. Alternatively 
they may have a friend with them at any 
meetings on the issue. 

 

2 Do note details.  
Make a note of all relevant dates, times and 
events. Obtain as much information as possible 
from the officer. A statement might be required 
as part of the evidence, but this will be dealt with 
during the course of the subsequent 
investigation. 
 

If the employee has made any notes or diary 
entries, take a copy of these also. In addition, 
note any documentary evidence which may exist 
to support the allegations made, but do not 
interfere with this evidence in any way. 

 

3 Do evaluate the allegation objectively.  
Before you take the matter further, in accordance 
with the whistleblowing policy you need to decide 
whether the suspicions suggest this is fraud, 
bribery or corruption. Be objective and consider 
the facts as they appear, based on the 
information you have to hand and any further 
information sought from the officer. If in doubt 
consult one of the specified contacts. 

 

4 Do advise the appropriate person. If you feel 
that a suspicion of irregularity is justified, you 
should notify one of the specified contacts and 
arrange to hand over the information gathered, 
and where anonymity is not an issue, the 
officer’s name and contact details. Someone will 
be assigned to investigate and inform the officer 
of what will happen next (although it may not 
always be possible to inform them of the 
progress of the investigation and its outcome). 

 

 
 
 

 

P
age 94



 

 
ANTI FRAUD – A MANAGER’S GUIDE ANTI FRAUD – A MANAGER’S GUIDE ANTI FRAUD – A MANAGER’S GUIDE 

Need Further Advice? 
 

If you need further advice the 
Specified contacts are: 

 
Steve Hearse, Statutory Finance Officer 

on 01237 428967 
 

Staci Dorey, Senior Solicitor 
on 01237 428763 

 
Sarah Ayres, HR Manager  

on 01237 428791 
 

Chris Dobbs, Governance Team  
on 01237 428789 

 
Rob Hutchins, Internal Audit 
(Devon Audit Partnership) 

On 01392 383000 
 

Grant Thornton (external auditors) 
on 0117 305 7600  

5 Deal with the matter promptly if you feel 
the concerns are warranted. Any delay may 
cause the Council to suffer further financial 
loss. Depending upon the findings of the 
internal investigation, the matter could be 
referred to the External Auditors or the Police 

for attention.  
 

The 5 Don’ts 
 

1 Don’t ridicule suspicions raised by 
officers. 

 The Council cannot operate an effective anti-
fraud policy if employees are reluctant to pass 
on their concerns to management. 

 

 Employees may be reluctant to raise concerns 
for fear of ridicule or recrimination. 

 

 You should ensure you listen to all officers’ 
concerns and reassure them that they will not 
suffer any recrimination as a result of raising 
any reasonably held suspicion. You can refer 
them to the Whistleblowing policy for details of 
this. 

 

 In particular, you should note that employees 
are protected from victimisation, dismissal and 
selection for redundancy under the Public 
Interest Disclosure Act 2013 when making 
certain disclosures of information in the public 
interest. Compensation may be payable if any 
such victimisation occurs. The Council’s Senior 
Solicitor will provide advice to employees, in 
confidence, on whether a proposed disclosure 
would be protected under the Act.  

 
2 Don’t approach or accuse any individuals    

  directly. 
 
 

3 Don’t convey your suspicions to anyone   
  other than those with proper authority. 
 

4 Don’t try to investigate the matter 
yourself. Remember that poorly managed 
investigations are highly likely to jeopardise 
any successful criminal prosecution. 

 
 

5  Don’t disclose to any person being  
    investigated the source of the information. 
 The Council is committed to protecting those 

officers who report suspicions from harassment 
or victimisation. 

 

Summary of Manager’s 
Responsibilities 

 

 Become familiar with these principles and 
to whom suspicions should be reported.  

 If you receive a report of suspected 
fraud, corruption or bribery make a 
note of all relevant details, but do not 
attempt to investigate the matter 
further yourself. 

 Report all reasonable suspicions 
promptly to one of the specified 
contacts. If in doubt report the 
suspicions. 

 

Investigating Suspected Irregularities 
 

The Whistleblowing policy and Financial 
Procedure Rules explain who the investigating 
officers are for fraud, corruption and 
irregularity issues. The officers are specifically 
trained to investigate such cases.  
 

Evidence will be gathered in accordance with 
the Police and Criminal Evidence Act and 
other legislation and the investigation will be 
managed to ensure that suspects are not 
prematurely alerted or evidence destroyed. 
 

 

Managers may be required to assist the 
investigation but this will be under very 
specific guidance. The investigators will be 
responsible for notifying the whistleblowing 
officer of any matters.    

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

January 2020 
 

P
age 95



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 
Agenda Item  

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Update of the Anti-Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy &Strategy  

 

Date: 21st January 2020 Reference:  

 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:    To seek Members’ approval for the refreshed Whistleblowing Policy. 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The previous version of the Whistleblowing Policy was last updated in February 2017 following 
recommendations in the Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults audit; the changes arising 
from the Enterprise and Regulation Reform Act 2013; and changes to post titles. 
 
The current update ensures that the Whistleblowing Policy remains up-to-date and fit for 
purpose. 
 
This policy is complemented by the Council’s Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy. An 
update of the Council’s Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy was approved by the Audit & 
Governance Committee in October 2019. 
 
The adoption of this refreshed Whistleblowing Policy will ensure a consistent approach is 
applied and that the Council operates to ‘best practice’ standards.  

 
 
2. REPORT 

Fort many years the Council has adopted a zero tolerance of fraud and corruption. The 
Whistleblowing Policy supports this zero tolerance approach and sets out how those who need to 
refer an issue or concern can do so safely with protection for the whistle-blower and the 
assurance that the matter will be investigated appropriately. For the Authority it ensures that 
evidence can be secured correctly at the earliest point to provide greater likelihood of successful 
investigation.  
 
ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
The updated Whistleblowing Policy is set out at Appendix A. 

 
 
3. IMPLICATIONS 
 

Legal Implications 
To ensure that the Council complies with the Fraud Act 2006, the Bribery Act 2010, Public 
Interest Disclosure Act 1998 and the Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013. 
 
Financial Implications 
None. 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None. 
 

  Page 96



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 
Sustainability Implications 
None. 
 
Equality/Diversity 
No specific issues arise from this report and Strategy. 
 
Risk Management 
Updating the Policy enables the Authority to communicate the zero tolerance stance to its 
members, officers and the public and this may deter those that consider that an attempted fraud 
is worth risking. The benefit is that the Authority demonstrates its commitment to an Anti Fraud 
culture, by the regular review, updating and approval of a Whistleblowing Policy.  
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference, and the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “This policy is embedded in 
the Council’s culture of adopting a zero tolerance approach to fraud, corruption and bribery. The 
Council is committed to taking appropriate action to ensure compliance with this policy and to 
ensure Torridge retains a clean bill of health.”   

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 

The previous Whistleblowing Policy has been refreshed and updated to ensure it remains up-to-
date and fit for purpose. 
 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Committee are asked to: 
 
Approve the updated Whistleblowing Policy. 
 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations:  

 
Jenny Wallace;  
Steve Hearse;  
Staci Dorey 
Robert Hutchins 
Councillor Philip Hackett 
 

 Contact Officer:  
 

Chris Dobbs 

 Background Papers: 
 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum: Managing the Risk of Fraud 
CIPFA’s Fraud discussion forum 
Existing policies and procedures including: 

Anti-Fraud, Corruption and bribery Policy  
Financial and Contract Procedure Rules,   
Gift and Hospitality Registers for Members and Officers,  
Codes of Conduct for Members and Staff and 
Disciplinary Procedures 

 
 

 
 

Page 97



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 98



2 
 

 
 

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 
 

1. Introduction 
 
 Whistleblowing is a procedure whereby employees can confidentially disclose their 

concerns about apparent wrong doings such as fraud, malpractice, breach of any 
health and safety law, or any other illegal act, either on the part of management or by 
fellow employees.  Employees are often the first to realise that there may be 
something seriously wrong within the Authority. However, they may not express their 
concerns because they feel that making a formal complaint would be disloyal to their 
colleagues, their managers or to the Authority. They may also fear victimisation. So, it 
may be easier to ignore the concern rather than report what may just be a suspicion of 
malpractice. 

 
The Authority has adopted a zero-tolerance approach to fraud, corruption, and bribery, 
and is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, honesty and 
accountability. In line with that commitment, the Authority encourages employees, 
Councillors, and others with concerns about any aspect of the Authority’s work 
to come forward and voice those concerns. We appreciate that employees may not 
know the "whole picture" and that sometimes they may make a referral in good faith 
that, on investigation, turns out not to be an issue.  
 
We will support employees who raise concerns in good faith and, under the Public 
Interest Disclosure Act (1998) (PIDA), a worker has the right not to suffer detriment or 
be unfairly dismissed as a result of speaking out about crime, fraud, miscarriages of 
justice or other malpractices. The Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013 (ERRA) 
provided additional protection for whistle blowers. This Whistleblowing Policy is 
intended to encourage and enable employees to raise concerns within the 
Authority without fear of reprisal. 
 
Where employees have sufficient evidence that a fraud may be taking/has taken 
place, they must report the incident, otherwise they could be considered complicit. 

 
All matters relating to fraud and corruption, while encompassed by the 
Whistleblowing Policy, are separately covered by the Anti Fraud, Corruption and 
Bribery Strategy.  If fraud and corruption are suspected, the Anti Fraud, 
Corruption and Bribery Strategy MUST be followed.  Therefore, any reports of 
fraud and/or corruption that are reported through this Whistleblowing Policy will 
be investigated in accordance with the Authority’s Anti Fraud, Corruption and 
Bribery Policy.  

 

2. Aims and Scope of the Policy 
 
 This policy aims to: 

 Encourage the whistleblower to feel confident in raising concerns  
 Provide avenues for the whistleblower to raise those concerns and receive 

feedback on any action taken 
 Ensure the whistleblower receives a response to their concerns and are aware 

of how to take the matter further if they are dissatisfied with the response 
 Reassure the whistleblower that they will be protected from possible reprisals or 

victimisation for whistleblowing in good faith 
 Provide anonymity for the whistleblower  

Page 99



3 
 

 
3. Eligibility 
 

This policy applies to all Council workers, including elected and co-opted Members, 
employees, staff of Council contractors, suppliers of goods and services and agency 
staff.  

 

4.  Qualifying Disclosure 
    

In order for a matter to receive consideration the whistleblower must: 
 

 Make the disclosure in good faith 
 Reasonably believe that the information disclosed, and any allegation contained 

in it, are substantially true 
 Not make the disclosure for personal gain 
 Believe the relevant concern warrants investigation. 

 

5. How to Identify Relevant Matters of Concern 
 

There are other procedures in place for employees and Members to lodge concerns 
including: 

 Grievance Procedure – matters relating to their own employment in the case of 
a Council employee 

 Dignity at Work Policy and Procedures – reporting behaviour that constitutes 
bullying or harassment 

 Complaints Procedure – standards of Service/Actions by staff from the public 
 Members’ Code of Conduct – matters relating to improper conduct by Members 
 Code of Conduct and The Deal - set out expected standards of conduct for 

employee’s  
 Corporate Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Strategy – suggested or potential 

irregularity in the exercise of the Authority’s functions, including financial 
malpractice.  

 
This Whistleblowing Policy is intended to be an umbrella policy to ensure concerns 
that may potentially fall outside the scope of other policies are covered.  These may 
include 

 Unlawful or improper conduct 
 Financial malpractice 
 Dangers to the public, colleagues, or the environment 
 Breaches of confidentiality and/or security 
 The provision or non-provision of care or services to a patient, or client group 
 A colleague’s professional conduct and/or performance 
 Something that is against the Authority’s Constitution, Procedure Rules and 

policies 
 Any concerns regarding the safeguarding of children or vulnerable adults 
 Other unethical conduct 

 
Examples of where the policy may be used include: 

 An employee becomes aware that the Authority’s Policies and Procedures or 
other Regulations governing the work of the Authority have been ignored. 

 An employee becomes aware of another employee submitting false travel or 
time sheets 

 Employee becomes aware that an officer is contravening legislation on Health 
and Safety Issues  

Page 100



4 
 

 
6.  How to Raise Concerns 
 

Where the whistleblower has concerns about malpractice and it is not appropriate to 
raise them through other procedures, such as grievance procedures, the whistleblower 
should raise them with an appropriate person. 

 
Who the whistleblower raises concerns with will depend on the seriousness and 
sensitivity of the issues involved and who is thought to be involved in the malpractice.  
For example, if the whistleblower believes that a manager is involved, the 
whistleblower should approach the Senior Solicitor, the Statutory Finance Officer, 
Internal Audit or the Human Resources Manager. The Whistleblower could also 
choose to raise their concerns with their Union Representative, an Elected Member, or 
the Council’s External Auditor. 

 
 Concerns may be raised verbally or in writing.  Those who wish to make a written 

report are invited to use the following format: 
 The background and history of the concern (giving relevant dates) 
 The reason why the whistleblower is particularly concerned about the situation 

 
The earlier the whistleblower expresses their concern the easier it is to take action.  
The whistleblower is not expected to prove beyond doubt the truth of an allegation but 
will need to demonstrate to the person contacted that there are reasonable grounds for 
the concern. 

 
The whistleblower may obtain advice and guidance on how to pursue matters of 
concern from the Human Resources Manager, the Senior Solicitor, the Statutory 
Finance Officer, Internal Audit, or their Trade Union Representative.  They may wish to 
discuss their concern with a colleague or may find it easier to raise an issue if there is 
more than one person who has had a similar experience or concern. 

 
The whistleblower may invite a trade union representative, a professional association 
representative or a friend or colleague to attend any meetings or interviews in 
connection with the concerns raised.  

 
Any complaints of fraud or corruption that are reported through this 
Whistleblowing Policy will be referred to the Council’s Anti Fraud, Corruption 
and Bribery Strategy.   
 
 

7.  How the Council will respond 
 

Initial Review 
 

The officer receiving the complaint will quickly assess whether it is: 
 A matter for Human Resources or Internal Audit to investigate and if so pass 

the details to HR or Internal Audit as soon as possible and within 5 days ; or  
 A matter that does not fall within the Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery 

Strategy but does need to be conducted by a relevant /senior officer, and if so 
to pass the details to an Investigating Officer as soon as possible and within 5 
days; or 

 It is a matter that is within their remit to deal with.  
 In exceptional circumstances the complaint may require notification to the 

Police for investigation. 
  

Page 101



5 
 

 
The complaint will then be reviewed to establish whether an investigation is 
appropriate and, if so, what form it should take, having regard to the overriding 
principle of the public interest. Where the allegation relates to a Manager or above 
then this will be conducted by an Investigating Officer selected from those listed below. 
This review will be commenced within 10 working days of the concern being raised, 
and the whistleblower will be notified in a manner to be agreed with them (e.g. email, 
letter etc.) within 10 calendar days of the outcome of this initial review.  

 
Investigating officers may be the Senior Solicitor, the Statutory Finance Officer, 
Internal Audit, the Human Resources Manager or other nominated Senior Officer.  

 
 The Investigating Officer will contact the whistleblower by an agreed method (which 

may be their home address) to: 
 Acknowledge that the concern has been received 
 Indicate how they intend to deal with the matter raised 
 Estimate how long it will be before there is a final response 
 Provide information on support mechanisms 

 
 Further Investigations 

  
 Where further investigations are required these must be completed within six weeks, 

but extensions will be granted when necessary.  The aim of these timescales is to 
ensure that all cases of whistleblowing are dealt with as soon as possible.   

 
 If it is necessary to arrange a meeting with the whistleblower, this may be arranged off 

site. The whistleblower may be accompanied by a union or professional association 
representative or a friend.   

 
 The investigating officer will: 

 Fully investigate the complaint with the assistance of other individuals/bodies 
when appropriate. 

 If action is considered appropriate, present a report concerning the complaint 
and the validity of the complaint. The report will be made to the relevant Senior 
Manager for consideration of what action needs to be taken e.g. invoking the 
disciplinary or other procedures. Care is to be taken to ensure that the officer is 
appropriate in terms of service and seniority, but with regard to the 
requirements of which senior officers need to sit on disciplinary and grievance 
hearings. 

 Where appropriate inform staff against whom a complaint is made as soon as is 
practically possible.  The member of staff will be informed of their right to be 
accompanied or represented. 

 
If the whistleblower is not satisfied that the Investigating Officer is properly dealing with 
the concern, they should discuss this with the Solicitor or the Head of Paid Service. 
 
The Authority will take steps to minimise any difficulties that the whistleblower may 
experience as a result of raising a concern.  For example, if they are required to give 
evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings the Authority will arrange for them to 
receive advice about the procedure. 

 
 The Authority accepts that the whistleblower needs to be assured that the matter has 

been properly addressed.  Thus, subject to legal constraints, we will inform them of the 
progress and outcomes of any investigation. 

  

Page 102



6 
 

 
 
8.  The Responsible Officer 
 
 The Head of Paid Service has overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation 

of this policy and will report as necessary to the Council.   
 
 The Senior Solicitor maintains a record of concerns raised and the outcomes (but in a 

form that does not endanger confidentiality). Internal Audit and the Human Resources 
Manager may also retain a copy. 

 

9. How the Matter can be taken Further 
  

This policy is intended to provide a whistleblower with an avenue within the Authority 
to raise concerns.  The Authority aims to ensure that the whistleblower will be satisfied 
with any action taken.  If not, and the person wishes to take the matter outside the 
Authority, the following are possible contact points who can receive whistleblowing 
reports: 

 the Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton 
 the Police 

 
Alternatively, if you need advice about what to do you could consider approaching the 
following organisations for confidential advice: 

 your trade union representative  
 the local Citizens Advice Bureau 
 Public Concern at Work (a whistleblowing charity who operate a confidential 

advice line) 
 
If the whistleblower does take the matter outside the Authority they should ensure they 
do not disclose confidential information. It is suggested they should check with the 
Senior Solicitor if they have concerns about confidentiality, or the protection available 
under the Public Interest Disclosure Act. 

 
In addition to the above Members are now able to disclose information in accordance 
with their Code of Conduct.  

 
10. Protecting Whistleblowers’ Confidentiality 
 

The Authority will seek to protect a person’s identity when they raise a concern and do 
not want their name to be disclosed.  Employees will be protected from distress, 
including giving evidence in front of the person against whom the allegations are being 
made, wherever possible.  However, during the investigation, the source of the 
information may be revealed, and you may be required to provide a statement or come 
forward as a formal witness. 

 

When an individual makes a disclosure, the organisation will process any personal 
data collected in accordance with its data protection policy. Data collected from the 
point at which the individual makes the report is held securely and accessed by, and 
disclosed to, individuals only for the purposes of dealing with the disclosure. 

 
 
 
 

Page 103



7 
 

 
 
11. Untrue Allegations 
 

If a whistleblower raises a concern in good faith, but it is not confirmed by the 
investigations, no action will be taken against them.   
 
If, however, an unfounded allegation is made maliciously or for personal gain, 
disciplinary action will be taken against the person.  In an extreme case, malicious or 
speculative allegations could give rise to legal action on the part of the person/s 
complained about. 

 

12.  Anonymous Allegations 
 

Whistleblowers are encouraged to put their name to any allegations made.  However, 
it is understood that some people may wish to remain anonymous.  Concerns 
expressed in this way are much less powerful, but will be considered, at the discretion 
of the Authority. 

 
In exercising this discretion, the factors to be taken into account would include: 

 The seriousness of the issues raised 
 The credibility of the concern 
 The likelihood of confirming the allegation from other sources 

 
13. Victimisation 
  

The Authority will not tolerate bullying, harassment or victimisation and will take action 
to protect whistleblowers when they raise a concern in good faith. 

 
If a whistleblower receives reprisals from those responsible for the malpractice or any 
other member of staff, the Authority will take the matter very seriously and where 
appropriate take disciplinary action.  
 

14. Review of Policy 
  

As part of the Council’s governance arrangements the Audit & Governance Committee 
periodically review and approve the arrangements by which staff of the Council may, in 
confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial 
reporting or other matters. The Audit & Governance Committee are responsible for 
ensuring that arrangements are in place for the proportionate and independent 
investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up action. 
 

15. Communication 
 
This policy is available on both the Staff Intranet and the Public Website. To ensure 
the policy is easy to understand it is supported by an easy to use ‘Whistleblowing – 
Employee Guide’ and a ‘Whistleblowing – Manager’s Guide’. Whistleblowing is also a 
topic presented at staff induction sessions and copies of the ‘Whistleblowing – 
Employee Guide’ are handed out at Staff Induction sessions.   
 
The staff newsletter includes regular reminders of the purpose and availability of the 
Whistleblowing Policy. 
 
 

Page 104



 
  

REPORT OF Customer Support Manager 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Council Tax & Business Rates 

Date: 21 January 2020 Reference:  

 
 
 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    Prevention of Fraud, Error and Avoidance of Liability (Council Tax & 
Business Rates). 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

At the last meeting of this committee there was a discussion around fraud and what does the 
Council do to mitigate this in respect to Council Tax and Business Rates. 

  
The purpose of this report is to provide Members with information on the activities of the 
Revenues team to identify fraud, error and evasion within the service. 

 
2. REPORT 

 
There are currently 32,860 rateable domestic dwellings and 3,952 rateable business 
properties within Torridge.  
 
What actions do we take to identify fraud, error and evasion? 
 
Council Tax 
 

 We employ a visiting officer to identify new property and to verify applications for 
discounts, exemptions and reductions. 

 We regularly review our discounts and exemptions including single persons and 
students. 

 We have used 3rd party providers to identify empty homes. 

 We participate in the National Fraud Initiative (data matching exercise). 
 

Business Rates 
 

 We employ a visiting officer to identify new property and to verify applications for 
discounts and reliefs etc. 

 We have used a 3rd party provider to identify new business premises including the 
expansion of existing premises which affects the rateable value of the property. 

 
 

 
The following table provides a high level view of current discounts and discretionary relief 
that has been awarded, removed and the associated value. 
 

Page 105

Agenda Item 14



 
  

Total Households in Council Tax: 32860

Discounts Total Applied Reviews Savings

Single Occupier Discount 9753 45 discounts removed (SPD review) £35,160.16

8 discounts removed (NFI data match) £4,066.82

Disabled 179 0

50% Standard Empty 11 0

Exempt B - Charities 26 0

Exemption D 2 0

Exempt E - Hospital/Nursing home 51 2 discounts removed (November 2019 review) £1,292.05

Exempt F - Deceased 157 0

Exempt G - Prohibited by law 30 0

Exempt H - Unoccupied/held for a 

minister of religion 1 0

Exempt I - Receiving care 9 0

Exempt J - Providing care 2 0

Exempt K - Property left empty by 

student 1 0

Exempt L - Mortgagee in possession 4 0

Exempt M - Halls of residence 5 0

Exempt N - Students 31 5 discounts removed (November 2019 review) £8,568.01

25% Disregard - Students 406 35 discounts removed (November 2019 review) £11,446.35

Exempt R - Unoccupied caravan pitch 

or moorings for boats 1 0

Exempt S - Occupied by under 18s 8 0

Exempt T - Annexe prohibited 30 0

Exempt U - Severely mentally impaired 130 0

Exempt W - Granny annexe/dependant 

relatives over 65 70 0

Total: 10907 £60,533.39

Total Properties in Business Rates 3952

Reliefs Total Applied Reviews Savings

Small Business Rate Relief 3384 33 discounts removed (July 18 review) £48,574.28

Charitable Relief 145 0

Rural Relief 37 0

Local Discretionary Rate Relief 64 0

Retail Relief 149 0

Supporting Small Business 18 0

Empty Properties 224 0

Section 44a (Part Occupation) 1 0

Total *4021 £48,574.28

* Some properties attract more than one relief

Discounts, Exemptions, Reviews & Savings

 
 
 
Since December 2017 we have engaged the services of Analyse Local who specialise in 
identifying new or changes in existing commercial property that may affect the rateable 
value/liability. To date, they have identified 65 properties where the Rateable Value could 
potentially be increased or was not included in the rating list. Their investigations have led to 
39 increases/inclusions and 26 remaining unchanged (a 60% success rate) 

 
We are only charged for increases or new hereditaments at a rate of 10% in the difference 
identified for one year only. The rating list maintained by the Valuation Office Agency has 
been increased by a total of £485,195 with additional revenue raised totalling £396,905 
Torridge’s share of this is 40% which is £158,762. 
 
This summer we have also worked with Devon Audit Partnership and Experian (Credit 
reference/data matching agency) to identify those households claiming a single person 
discount, where other evidence exists that would suggest more than one person in the 
household. This has resulted in 45 discounts being removed with a value of £35,160 being 
rebilled. The Torridge share of this income is £2,998 
  
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal Implications 
 
The Council as `billing authority` has a legal duty to inform the Valuation Office Agency 
(VOA)where it believes there is information that would affect the rating list maintained by the 
VOA.  
 
The VOA is responsible for setting the rateable value/Band of the property. 
 
 
 

Page 106



 
  

Financial Implications 
 
Council Tax and Business rates provide significant income to the Council and preceptors, it 
is therefore essential that a range of activities are undertaken to reduce error, fraud and 
evasion to maximise revenue. 
 
Since July 2018 over £100,000 of discounts have been removed as a direct result of reviews 
carried out and a further £485,195 has been added to the business rating list since 2017. 
 
 
Human Resources Implications 
 
None identified. 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
 
None identified. 
 
Equality/Diversity 
 
None identified. 
 
Risk Management 
 
The Revenues team conduct regular reviews to ensure error, fraud and evasion is minimised 
and that revenue is maximised. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 

 
The service operates within a statutory legal framework and local policies. 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
 
Only data that is required to provide the service is collected; this data is held securely and 
can only be accessed by staff or is shared with those who have a legitimate reason to view 
and process it. 
 
Data is held for six years and is then deleted unless there is a legitimate reason to retain e.g. 
an outstanding balance on account or an ongoing investigation. 
 
 
Climate Change 
 
None identified. 
 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 
 It is inevitable that due to the volume of accounts and there value, that an element of 

customer error, fraud and evasion will occur. 
 
 The revenues team has taken a balanced approach using a range of activities to identify and 

remove error, fraud and evasion within the service. 
 
 

Page 107



 
  

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that the information provided in this report is for noting only. 

 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation – 

Officers Consulted - 
 Contact Officer:  

 Background Papers:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 108



       . 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2019/20 

 

 Cycle 
1 

Cycle 2 Cycle 3 Cycle 4 Cycle 
5 

Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 
8 

  23/7/19 17/9/19 22/10/19  21/1/20 24/3/20  

Governance 

     RIPA   

 
Waivers and Non-
compliance with 
Procedure Rules 

 
Anti Bribery Fraud and 

Corruption Policy 
Update 

 
Whistleblowing Policy 

Update 
  

 
Annual Governance 

Statement: final 
review 

   
Code of Corporate 

Governance 
Draft AGS  

   
AGS  

Review of Evidence 
 AGS  

Review of Evidence 
AGS  

Review of Evidence 
 

Audit 
Committee 

   
Effectiveness of Audit 

Committee 

  
  

Risk 
Management 

 
Corporate Risk  

Register 

Corporate 
Risk  

Register 

Corporate Risk  
Register 

 
Corporate Risk  

Register 
Corporate Risk Register  

      
Outcomes of Single 
Person Discount and 

Business Rates Reviews 
  

Internal Audit 

 
Audit Manager’s  

Opinion 
  

 Managing the risks of 
fraud & corruption 

Internal Audit Strategy 
and Plan for 2020/21 

 

 
Progress with 

Agreed Actions 
 

Progress with Agreed 
Actions 

 Progress with Agreed 
Actions 

Progress with 
Agreed Actions 

 

 
Audit Reports 

Issued 
 

Audit Reports 
Issued 

 Audit Reports 
Issued 

Audit Reports 
Issued 

 

Accounts 

 
Presentation & 

Approval of 
Accounts & AGS 

Approval of 
Accounts & 

AGS 
  

Preparation for the 
2019/20 Accounts 

FPR & CPR  
Update 

 

 
Report on  

Going Concern 

Report on 
Going 

Concern 
 

  
  

 
Letter of 

Representation 
  

  
  

External 
Audit 

   
Update  
report 

 Update  
report 

Update  
report 

 

 
Audit Findings 

Report 

Audit 
Findings 
Report 

Annual Audit  
Letter 

 
Annual Certification 

Letter 
  

    
  External Audit  

Plan 
 

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 16



       . 

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately. 

P
age 110


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Code of Corporate Governance
	6 - Code of Governance 2020 DRAFT

	7 AGS - Review of Governance Supporting Evidence
	8 Grant Thornton Update Report
	9 Managing the Risks of Fraud and Corruption.
	9 - TDC self assessment Jan 2020

	10 Audit Reports Issued to Date
	11 Progress with Agreed Actions
	12 Whistleblowing Policy
	12 - Manager's Guide triple fold 2020
	12 - Whistleblowing Policy 21 January 2020
	12 - Whistleblowing Policy 2020

	14 Council Tax and Business Rates
	16 Audit Forward Plan 2019-20

